






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  

MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 

May 3, 2021 

 

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
MAY 3, 2021 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA
The May 3, 2021 Board of Education meeting will be held at 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE. For public health

purposes associated with COVID-19, this meeting can also be attended by videoconference through “ZOOM” with access
available to the public and media. The Zoom link is https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/97326880792 and

can also be found at www.mpsomaha.org/board.

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Showcase - Recognition of Students

E. Public Hearings
1. Student Fees
2. Parental Access

F. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

G. Routine Matters
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes - April 19, 2021
2. *Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

H. Information Items
1. Superintendent’s Comments
2. Board Comments/Announcements
3. Report from Student Representatives

I. Unfinished Business
1. Second Reading and Approval of Policy 6670: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Homebound Instruction

J. New Business
1. Reaffirm Policy 5410: Student Services - Substance Use
2. Reaffirm Rule 5410.1: Student Services - Substance Use
3. Approval of Rule 6670.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Homebound Instruction
4. Reaffirm Policy 6750: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees
5. Approval of Rule 6750.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees
6. Reaffirm Policy 6800: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access

1

2

https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/97326880792
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ho0lOgoBP7DKOdXWBGTzb9_JWDCIZDYK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fR1uNEGcE7x7iAyNflWOPcpvZLwwc19r/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_R8oZ9VmYjIOk9W2L3qMQvjwz9omgkGq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16ZdKH4OqteerfUYaXeszjW_mK3fnh7p-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10WzAtQ1mQmwTV2FEItFFtaWtVZEn5sY9/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tIiAx18Ua_xQsvXegtS2NHUFNVts0y7O/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AY-JXC4YGLy33paJ_vlkneiStVQ-jvCy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1R2wbMYaqi3-OCGnIFnOdztxZ1-oiFsVP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CXLy39Ho7XOBhW0hVI_PD-No3ttzXelI/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IAXC-Yju9iG8U4A338jwRA4CesQgRDYn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-YQ4QM17MJ-Mgyjs9nPKS3fCoKg4eVIG/view?usp=sharing


7. Reaffirm Rule 6800.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access
8. Approval of Construction Manager at Risk’s Guaranteed Maximum Price for Norris Elementary School Renovation
9. Approval of Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire, Resignation Agenda
10. Executive Session - Negotiations and Evaluation

K. Reports
1. Legislative Report
2. District Update

L. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 10, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
2. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at ACX Cinema 12+
3. Employee Recognition Celebration on Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at Embassy Suites
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 17, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
5. High School Graduation on Saturday, May 29, 2021 at the Baxter Arena

MWHS at 9:00 a.m. /  MNHS at 1:00 p.m. / MSHS at 5:00 p.m.
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 7, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
7. Foundation Golf Tournament on Thursday, June 10, 2020. Registration and lunch at 11:00 am, start time at noon at

Tiburon
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 14, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

M. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

N. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZoBHh1v8p6JBv355r0f3zu0m6YwBTq2v/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hPDJJrkSEW4eA0nQVDajFhzeGrZ5EWm-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19v5oJ2zrg1kqQc_ifeaGdvKESAbtdov2/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZAAh0LB7reBTDOoMJpvlfLxz2u8ApqkV/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing


BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
MAY 3, 2021 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM

A.     Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B.     Pledge of Allegiance

C.     Roll Call

D.    Showcase - Recognition of Students

E.    Public Hearings
1. Student Fees
2. Parental Access

F.     Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

G.1*   Motion by __________, seconded by __________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from April 19, 2021.

G.2*   Motion by __________, seconded by __________, to approve the bills, receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on
File.

H.1    Superintendent’s Comments

H.2    Board Comments/Announcements

H.3    Report from Student Representatives

I.1    Second Reading by __________, Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Policy 6670:
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Homebound Instruction

J.1    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Policy 5410: Student Services - Substance Use.

J.2    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Rule 5410.1: Student Services - Substance Use.

J.3    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 6670.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment-
Homebound Instruction.

J.4    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Policy 6750: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment -
Student Fees.

1

4



J.5    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 6750.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment -
Student Fees.

J.6    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, reaffirm Policy 6800: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment-
Parental Access.

J.7    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Rule 6800.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment-
Parental Access.

J.8    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the Construction Manager at Risk’s Guaranteed Maximum
Price for the Norris Elementary School Renovation of $7,230,086 be approved and that the Chief Financial Officer be
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

J.9    Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve the Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire,
Resignation Agenda.

J. 10   Executive Session - Negotiations and Evaluation

K. Reports
1. Legislative Report
2. District Update

L. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 10, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
2. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at ACX Cinema 12+
3. Employee Recognition Celebration on Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at Embassy Suites
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 17, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
5. High School Graduation on Saturday, May 29, 2021 at the Baxter Arena

MWHS at 9:00 a.m. /  MNHS at 1:00 p.m. / MSHS at 5:00 p.m.
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 7, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
7. Foundation Golf Tournament on Thursday, June 10, 2020. Registration and lunch at 11:00 am, start time at noon at

Tiburon
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 14, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

M. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

N.    Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

5



STUDENT FEES PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT
By Duncan A. Young, Young & White Law Offices

Monday, May 3, 2021
6:00 pm

Don Stroh Administration Center

(NOTE: The Act requires that the public hearing be held at a special or regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of
Education and, therefore, you should open the special meeting and state that the purpose of the special meeting is to hold
the public hearing on the Student Fees Policy.)

I.    Good evening and welcome to the Millard Public Schools’ Board of Education Meeting. This part of the meeting is to
hold the public hearing on the Student Fees Policy.

Section 79-2,134 of the Public Elementary and Secondary Student Fee Authorization Act requires that annually each
school board hold a public hearing at a regular or special meeting for the purpose of addressing the proposed Student
Fees Policy.
Prior to holding the public hearing, the act requires the Board of Education to review the amount of money collected from
the students and the use of the waivers pursuant to the Student Fees Policy for the prior year. That was provided to the
Board.

I would like to introduce the Board members who are present and will participate in this public hearing. They are:

______________________________ ________________________ ___________________________

______________________________ ________________________ ___________________________

As I understand, the Superintendent and the District’s administration are recommending this Policy and the accompanying
Rule for adoption and are available to answer questions from the Board members. I also understand that the
administration is not going to make a presentation as such.

(If no one is wishing to speak) Seeing no request to speak I will now entertain a motion to close the Public
Hearing. Motion, Second, Vote.  The Public Hearing is closed

(If public is present and wishing to speak continue)

In order to allow everyone a chance to address the Board on the Student Fees Policy and accompanying Rule, I would
like to ask each of you to limit your comments to three (3) minutes. If there is a group of people who collectively would like
to address the Board on this issue it might be helpful if you would select one, two or three individuals to speak on behalf of
the entire group. Of course, we will allow each of you who wish to address the Board on this subject to do so at this time.
The official Board action on the policy and accompanying rule will be acted on during the regular meeting which is
scheduled to follow immediately after this public hearing.

I have received (numerous) (______ ) requests to address the Board and I will attempt to call you in the order
in which the requests were turned in prior to the opening of this public hearing. After everyone has had an opportunity to
address the Board on this issue, I will close the public hearing and adjourn the special meeting. The first speaker that has
requested an opportunity to address the Board is _________________________________________________

(continue calling the individuals until you have gone through all of them). There is no other person wishing to address the
Board.

I will now entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing on the Student Fees Policy and Rule. Motion, Second, Vote.

(Thank you very much for your participation in this public hearing. You have offered valuable information and insight to all
of the Board members as well as to the Superintendent and his administrative staff.)

Public hearing is closed.

6



Millard Public Schools
Fee Fund Receipts-4/1/20-3/31/21

4/1/2020-
Extra-Curricular Activities Other Exam Fees Student 3/31/2021
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

Elementaries
Abbot $0 $0 $0
Ackerman $0 $0 $0
Aldrich $0 $0 $0
Black Elk $0 $0 $0
Bryan $0 $0 $0
Cather $0 $0 $0
Cody $0 $0 $0
Cottonwood $0 $0 $0
Disney $0 $0 $0
Ezra $0 $0 $0
Harvey Oaks $0 $0 $0
Hitchcock $0 $0 $0
Holling Heights $0 $0 $0
Montclair $0 $0 $210 $210
Morton $0 $0 $0
Neihardt $0 $0 $0
Norris $0 $0 $0 $0
Reagan $0 $0 $0
Reeder $0 $0 $0
Rockwell $0 $0 $0
Rohwer $0 $0 $0
Sandoz $0 $0 $0
Upchurch $0 $0 $0
Wheeler $0 $0 $0 $0
Willowdale $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Elementaries $0 $0 $0 $210 $0 $0 $210

4/1/2020-
Extra-Curricular Activities Other Exam Fees Student 3/31/2021
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

Middle Schools
Anderson Middle $0 $0 $4,400 $1,881 $20,258 $26,539
Beadle Middle $525 $2,885 $13,615 $0 $0 $32,226 $49,251
Central Middle $0 $1,398 $7,065 $0 $16,110 $24,573
Kiewit Middle $0 $0 $5,985 $39,050 $27,201 $72,236
North Middle $0 $4,610 $8,490 $45,879 $8,430 $67,409
Russell Middle $0 $12,325 $14,034 $12,311 $5,790 $44,460

$0
Subtotal Middle Schools $525 $21,218 $53,589 $99,121 $0 $110,015 $284,467

4/1/2020-
Extra-Curricular Activities Other Exam Fees Student 3/31/2021
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

High Schools
Millard North High $0 $500 $29,333 $0 $78,098 $0 $107,930.80
Millard South High $0 $70,251 $37,910 $0 $1,215 $0 $109,376.03
Millard West High $340 $168,974 $24,649 $0 $25,914 $0 $219,877.22
Horizon High $0 $0 $0

Subtotal High Schools $340 $239,725 $91,892 $0 $105,226 $0 $437,184

District Wide Totals $865 $260,943 $145,481 $99,331 $105,226 $110,015 $721,861

$721,861
$0

7



Other Exam Fees Student
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

Elementaries $0 $0 $0 $210 $0 $0 $210

Other Exam Fees Student
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

Middle Schools $525 $21,218 $53,589 $99,121 $0 $110,015 $284,467

Other Exam Fees Student
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

High Schools $340 $239,725 $91,892 $0 $105,226 $0 $437,184

Other Exam Fees Student
Field/Other Trips Clubs/Organizations Participation/Pass Classes/Programs AP,IB,PSAT Transportation Total

District Wide Totals $865 $260,943 $145,481 $99,331 $105,226 $110,015 $721,861

Extra-Curricular Activities

Millard Public Schools
Fee Fund Receipts-4/1/20-3/31/21

Extra-Curricular Activities

Extra-Curricular Activities

Extra-Curricular Activities

8



PARENTAL ACCESS PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT 
By Duncan A. Young, Young & White Law Offices 

Monday, May 4, 2020 
6:05 pm 

Don Stroh Administration Center 
 
 

The next hearing at this special meeting of the Millard Public Schools’ Board of Education will be on the District’s Parental 
Access Policy 6800 and Rule 6800.1. 

 
This public hearing is being held because Nebraska Statute 79-533 requires that annually each school board hold a public 
hearing at a regular or special meeting for the purpose of addressing the proposed Parental Access Policy 6800 and Rule 
6800.1. 

 

Please have the record reflect the Board members who are present and will participate in this public hearing. They are: 

___________________________ ____________________________ ____________________________ 

___________________________ ____________________________ ____________________________ 
 
 

As I understand, the Superintendent and the District’s administration are recommending this Policy and the accompanying 
Rule for adoption and are available to answer questions from the Board members. I also understand that the 
administration is not going to make a presentation as such. 

 

The official Board action on the policy and accompanying rule will be acted on during the regular meeting which is 
scheduled to follow immediately after this public hearing. 
 
(If there is no one wishing to speak) Seeing no requests to speak I will now entertain a motion to close the Public 
hearing for Parent Access, Policy 6800 and Rule 6800.1 and to adjourn the special meeting. Motion, Second, Vote.  
If there is no other person wishing to address the Board, I will now close the public hearing and adjourn the special 
meeting. 

 
  (If public is present and wishing to speak continue)  
 
In order to allow everyone a chance to address the Board on the Parental Access Policy and accompanying Rule, I would 
like to ask each of you to limit your comments to three (3) minutes. If there is a group of people who collectively would like 
to address the Board on this issue it might be helpful if you would select one, two or three individuals to speak on behalf of 
the entire group. Of course, we will allow each of you who wish to address the Board on this subject to do so at this time. 

 
I have received (numerous) (  ) requests to address the Board and I will attempt to call you in the order 
in which the requests were turned in prior to the opening of this public hearing. After everyone has had an opportunity to 
address the Board on this issue, I will close the public hearing and adjourn the special meeting. The first speaker that has 
requested an opportunity to address the Board is __________________________________________________________ 

 
(continue calling the individuals until you have gone through all of them).  There is no other person wishing to address the 
Board.   

 
(Thank you very much for your participation in this public hearing. You have offered valuable information and insight to all of 
the Board members as well as to the Superintendent and his administrative staff.) 
 
.I will now entertain a motion to close the Public hearing for the Districts Parental Access Police 6800 and Rule 6800.1 and 
to adjourn the special meeting of the Millard Board of Education.  
 
(Motion, Second; Vote) 

9



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17

A meeting of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the county of Douglas in the state of Nebraska was
convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, April 19, 2021, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606
South 147th Street. For public health purposes associated with COVID-19, this meeting could also be attended by
videoconference through “ZOOM” with access available to the public and media. The Zoom link was
https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/92781808603, and was posted on the district website.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, April 16, 2021 a copy of
the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgement of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting.
All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public.

President Linda Poole announced that the open meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and asked
everyone to join in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll call was taken. Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson were present.

Motion was made by Mike Pate, Seconded by Dave Anderson, to excuse Mike Kennedy from tonight's meeting.Voting in
favor of said motion was: Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mr. Pate. Voting against were:
None. Motion carried.

An award was presented to Employees of the Month Deb Hopkinson, Kitchen Manager at Reeder Elementary and Jake
Curtiss, Director Employee Relations for the District.

Student Showcase highlighted Millard West: Cheer, Dance, and Educators Rising; Millard South: Girls Basketball, and
Scholastic State Art Awards; Millard North: Swimming & Diving, Wrestling, Boys Basketball, and Dance.

Mrs. Poole announced this is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  There were no
requests to speak.

Motion was made by Dave Anderson, Seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the Board of Education minutes for March 15,
2021, approve the bills and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley,
Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Mr. Anderson provided a summary of the April 12, 2021 Committee of the Whole Meeting.

Superintendent’s Comments: None

Board Comments:

Mike Pate: None

Stacy Jolley:
Mrs. Jolley shared that recently she had an opportunity to work with some UNMC medical students who are Millard grads.
She said it was exciting to work with them.

Dave Anderson: None

Amanda McGill Johnson: None

Linda Poole: None

1

10



Valery-Elvis Shafack, student representative from Millard North High School, reported on the academic and athletic
happenings at MNHS.

Unfinished Business: None

New Business:
Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Rule 4510.15: Human Resources – Pre-Retirement Planning
Programs. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mr. Pate.
Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, to reaffirm Rule 6200: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment - Taught Curriculum - Instructional Delivery. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs.
Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Stay Jolley, to approve Rule 6200.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment Taught Curriculum - Instructional Delivery. Mr. Pate asked how this was communicated to teachers? Director of
Staff Development & Instructional Improvement Dr. Todd Tripple said this is part of the online format used for evaluations
which is called TalentEd. The material is reviewed electronically at the beginning of each school year and administration
shares in an annual staff evaluation faculty meeting. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr.
Anderson, Mrs. Poole, and Mrs. Jolley. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, to approve the Revisions to the Staff Evaluation & Millard
Instructional Model. Assistant Superintendent for Leadership, Planning & Evaluation Dr. Kim Saum-Mills said in 2020
Nebraska adopted the Nebraska Teacher and Principal Performance Standards (NTPPS). Districts had the option to align to
the standards or adopt them completely. Dr. Saum-Mills said they worked with several stakeholders, including the MEA to
gather input on any proposed changes. Dr. Todd Tripple highlighted the major changes to theMillard Instruction Model and
the Staff Evaluation process. Changes to our Millard Instructional Model consist of updated verbiage that includes cultural
competency, emphasis on different forms of assessment, and language that aligns to our academic and behavior MTSS
(Multi-Tiered System of Support) system. Changes to the Staff Evaluation process include revising the number and language
of ratings, combining two Continuous Growth Phases into one Continuous Growth Phase, streamlines the goal setting steps,
and broadens expectations for objectives. Mr. Pate asked for clarification on what the measurement for cultural competency
means. Dr. Tripple offered an explanation. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate,
Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, to approve the Revisions to the Administrative Evaluation.
Mr. Anderson asked for a definition of Mutual Commitments. Dr. Kim Saum-Mills said Mutual Commitments have been a part
of the administration evaluation for many years. The Administrator Evaluation System is comprised of three components:
Mutual Commitments, Key Performance Action Plans and Leadership Dimensions. Mutual Commitments are job
accountability commitments that are agreed upon with the principal's supervisor. Superintendent Dr. Sutfin reminded the
board that the Mutual Commitments are tied directly to the District's Strategic Plan and used to move our Strategic Plan
forward. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson.
Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Amanda McGill Johnson gave the First Reading of Policy 6670: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Homebound
Instruction. Mrs. Jolley asked questions regarding the wording of this policy. Mr. Duncan Young said the current wording
follows statute guidelines.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the Homebound Instruction Plan for 2021-2022. Mrs.
Poole said we have been talking about this plan for a while now and we have been very open with the public regarding this
plan. Associate Superintendent of Educational Services Dr. Heather Phipps said that concurrent remote learning will sunset
at the end of the school year. Dr. Phipps said the communication to families will begin tomorrow if this plan is approved. Dr.
Phipps said that would allow buildings as well as parents time to prepare for next school year. Voting in favor of said motion
was: Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mr. Pate. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

2

11



Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the K-12 Communication and Information Systems
Framework- Part II and Instructional Materials Proposal. Director of Secondary Education Dr. Tony Weers said the name has
been changed to Communication and Information Systems to mirror what is used in the industry, as well as state and national
terminology. Dr. Phipps said what industry has shared with us is that if we can create learners that can think critically, and
problem-solve they can train them in the new technology as it comes available. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate,
Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Stacy Jolley, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, to approve the Middle School Electives Instructional
Materials and Middle School Electives Field Study for 2021-2022. Director of Secondary Education Dr. Tony Weers said this
is the third time this has come to the board. The changes were part of the new middle school schedule and this is the last year
of implementation of these new electives. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, Mrs. Poole, Mrs.
Jolley, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve Sarah M. Rozeboom as the new Principal of Black Elk
Elementary School. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Poole, Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mr. Pate and Mr.
Anderson. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Stacy Jolley, to approve the Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire: Jaclyn M.
Harris, Taylor R. Sandoe, Andrea M. Egelkraut, Alyssa M. Herold, Sheridan K. Banzhaf, Brooke D. Studt, Emily J. Morgan,
Britnee L. Gutgsell, Courtney M. Cloyed, Tyson J. Chromy, Alexandrea G. O’Donnell, Danielle M. Douglas, Alessandra C.
Derks, Michele E. Smith, John D. Spady, Scott A. Gibson, Emily M. Taylor, Jenna L. Krueger, Savannah R. Dannenberg, Jill
E. Carden, Sidney R. Benson, Sara S. Conahan, Emily A. Welch; Resignation Agenda: Alicia M. Judernatz, Andrea Lo,
Patricia M. Knudson, Julie A. Nielsen, Yano W. Jones, Shane M. Thibault, Ashley R. Gartner, Caitlin M. McGoldrick, Carina
R. Jacobson, Kimberly C. Hallquist, Brett M. Navin, Hannah M. Hoxie, Ryan D. Saunders, Nicole M. Nelson, Beverly J.
Couch, Jennifer M. Callahan, Patricia M. Edwards, Logan T. Miller, Megan E. Ahlvers; Leave of Absence: Laura C. Gill,
Timothy J. Mlinar, Hillery C. Workman, Timothy D. Royers. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mrs. McGill
Johnson, Mr. Pate, Mr. Anderson, and Mrs. Poole. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Reports:

High School Small Class Size Report
Director of Secondary Education Dr. Tony Weers provided the board with the high school small class size report. Dr. Weers
shared that this report is used to create discussion with building teams, specifically regarding courses with less than 14
students enrolled. This year there are no courses being recommended for cancellation. Several courses will be monitored or
co-seated with other courses.

Core Knowledge at Disney Elementary Program Evaluation
Executive Director of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation Dr. Darin Kelberlau thanked Dr. Kara Hutton and principal
Cindy Scharff for their assistance on this report. He said this study evaluated three main topics: enrollment, culture, and
student achievement. Dr. Kelberlau said student enrollment has increased during the implementation of the Core Knowledge
program and with this program nearing the completion of implementation, the school enrollment is approaching capacity. The
culture and engagement at Disney is similar to or better than other elementary schools and cultural diversity has increased at
the school. He said Core Knowledge students achieve and grow as well as or better than their peers within Millard Public
Schools in both reading and mathematics (as measured by MAP Growth). Core Knowledge parents are highly involved with
a wide variety of school activities and their children’s education.

Legislative Update
Executive Director of Activities, Athletics & External Affairs Nolan Beyer provided the board with a legislative update. Mr.
Beyer said tomorrow will be the 63rd day of the 90 day session and they will be coming off a four day weekend.

3

12



Mr. Beyer said the budget bills easily moved on from select file and will be heard for final reading tomorrow morning. The
budget has moved through with very minor changes. No trouble passing the budget is anticipated.

Mr. Beyer said LB2 by Senator Briese reduces valuation on agriculture land to 50% of actual value on taxes paid to schools.
Millard and members of GNSA had this bill as a monitor status. Mr. Beyer said a recent amendment added a requirement of a
3% increase annually to the state’s property tax credit fund regardless of the state’s financial situation. Due to this change we
have changed our stance to oppose this bill.

Mr. Beyer said LB408 by Senator Briese will be up on the floor Thursday morning. He said AM973 has been filed as a white
copy amendment which means it replaces the bill. This is a large amendment. Mr. Beyer said they continue to work with
contract lobbyists on different strategies. Mr. Beyer said the education community with the help of contract lobbyists have
developed 16 amendments to AM973. He said they have commitment from senators on almost all of the amendments. He
said the vote count currently is at a strong twenty.

Mr. Beyer provided brief updates on the following bills:
● LB147 - Change provisions relating to retirement systems for Class V school districts.
● LB364 - Adopt the Opportunity Scholarships Act and provide tax credits.
● LB454 - Adopt the School Property Tax Stabilization Act and change the valuation of agricultural land.
● LB644 - Transparency in Taxation Bill.

District Update
Dr. Sutfin provided the board with an update on how the district is responding to COVID-19. Dr. Sutfin said today we have
44 active cases of COVID-19. Dr. Sutfin said we are having discussions with Douglas County Health regarding quarantines
and the value of them.

Dr. Sutfin said it appears there will be eight vaccine clinics for students across the metro area. Vaccines would be available
for students ages 16 and above. Millard will host one of the clinics at Millard North. He said parents would accompany the
student and sign a consent for the walk-in only clinic. Dr. Sutfin said we continue to work with Douglas County and will
communicate to families as soon as possible.

Mrs. Poole reminded the Board of future agenda items and said this is the proper time for public questions and comments.
There were two requests to speak on non agenda items. Scott Lodes of 5417 S. 147th St. and Kate Muldoon of 5417 S. 147th
St. spoke regarding loitering in the Millard South East parking lot.

Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar:

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 3, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
2. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at ACX Cinema 12+
3. Employee Recognition Celebration on Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at Embassy Suites
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 10, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 17, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
6. High School Graduation on Saturday, May 29, 2021 at the Baxter Arena

MWHS at 9:00 a.m. /  MNHS at 1:00 p.m. / MSHS at 5:00 p.m.
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 7, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
8. Foundation Golf Tournament on Thursday, June 10, 2020. Registration and lunch at 11:00 am, start time at noon at

Tiburon
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 14, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

4

13



14



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
 

May 3, 2021 
 
 

15



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476387  04/22/2021 108436  COX COMMUNICATIONS INC             $7,624.81

476388  04/22/2021 051740  INLAND TRUCK PARTS CO.             $1,286.64

476390  04/22/2021 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $49,839.35

476392  04/22/2021 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $100.00

476393  05/03/2021 140821  MARGARET E SCHWARTZ                $13,746.00

476394  05/03/2021 136271  TROPHY GUY INC                     $109.80

476396  05/03/2021 143435  JOSIAH T AAKRE                     $11.65

476397  05/03/2021 109853  ACCESS ELEVATOR INC.               $609.50

476398  05/03/2021 010112  JOSEY THOMAS AARON                 $108.75

476400  05/03/2021 139412  ERIN M AGUIRRE                     $54.88

476401  05/03/2021 139362  AMANDA L AKSAMIT                   $97.38

476402  05/03/2021 137976  HALEY E ALLEN                      $64.06

476403  05/03/2021 139802  JENNIFER L ALLEN                   $31.60

476404  05/03/2021 136400  ALPINE KILNS & EQUIPMENT LLC       $152.30

476405  05/03/2021 143247  PAUL P ANDERSON                    $86.02

476406  05/03/2021 136056  DAVE ANDERSON                      $158.98

476407  05/03/2021 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $4,038.45

476408  05/03/2021 131183  ASSOCIATION FOR CAREER/TECHNICAL   $152.00

476409  05/03/2021 072250  B G PETERSON COMPANY               $444.00

476410  05/03/2021 137482  KRISTINA A BAMESBERGER             $55.44

476412  05/03/2021 133154  DESAREE D BARR                     $32.26

476413  05/03/2021 017877  CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR              $143.81

476414  05/03/2021 131634  MARGUERITE M BAY                   $14.22

476416  05/03/2021 135223  AARON J BEARINGER                  $131.96

476417  05/03/2021 139783  LYNNE H BECKER                     $3,369.60

476418  05/03/2021 141521  ERIKA J BECKLEY                    $79.63

476419  05/03/2021 107540  BRIAN F BEGLEY                     $267.12

476420  05/03/2021 138255  NICOLE M BEINS                     $83.84

Apr 27, 2021 1

16



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476421  05/03/2021 139889  DARLA G BELL                       $128.30

476423  05/03/2021 142454  LAURA C BESHALER                   $139.38

476424  05/03/2021 134945  NOLAN J BEYER                      $465.00

476426  05/03/2021 142377  ABBY J BJORNSEN                    $83.66

476427  05/03/2021 140887  RODNEY JOHNSON                     $264.00

476428  05/03/2021 134478  TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH               $90.67

476429  05/03/2021 142728  HEATHER E BOUCHER                  $43.79

476430  05/03/2021 139996  BOYS TOWN                          $18,483.36

476431  05/03/2021 015805  CORVUS INDUSTRIES LTD              $19,806.00

476432  05/03/2021 136274  BYRON P BRAASCH                    $100.58

476433  05/03/2021 139947  YESENIA BRAVO                      $213.75

476434  05/03/2021 139890  DOUGLAS J BREITER                  $127.01

476435  05/03/2021 019861  BRIGGS, INC.                       $980.40

476436  05/03/2021 141959  EMILI L BROSNAN                    $465.00

476437  05/03/2021 140846  NANCY J BRUMMEL                    $85.58

476438  05/03/2021 141510  CHRISTINE L BUKOWSKI               $152.88

476439  05/03/2021 142667  COMPASS GROUP INC                  $210.16

476440  05/03/2021 131158  CURTIS R CASE                      $465.00

476441  05/03/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $50,754.10

476442  05/03/2021 065420  CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL              $1,680.00

476443  05/03/2021 138613  CENTRAL SALES INC                  $791.46

476444  05/03/2021 135648  SUSAN M CHADWICK                   $11.76

476445  05/03/2021 136654  NICOLE A CHAPMAN                   $59.65

476446  05/03/2021 106851  CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE         $9,772.50

476447  05/03/2021 133107  NICOLE M CHUDOMELKA                $37.44

476449  05/03/2021 131135  PATRICIA A CLIFTON                 $43.01

476450  05/03/2021 137013  NANCY S COLE                       $124.94

476451  05/03/2021 108093  COMFORT PRODUCTS DISTRIBUTING      $29.12

Apr 27, 2021 2

17



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476452  05/03/2021 025690  COMPUTER INFORMATION CONCEPTS      $56,716.00

476453  05/03/2021 132152  GOVCONNECTION INC                  $784.75

476454  05/03/2021 136518  JANET L COOK                       $163.74

476455  05/03/2021 134861  TARA R COOPER                      $1,982.95

476457  05/03/2021 143248  RANA R COREY                       $36.96

476458  05/03/2021 106893  WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC     $21.30

476459  05/03/2021 027300  CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC          $1,383.00

476460  05/03/2021 132671  JEAN T DAIGLE                      $178.30

476461  05/03/2021 134751  ANGELA M DAIGLE                    $28.34

476462  05/03/2021 131003  DAILY RECORD                       $97.63

476463  05/03/2021 135569  CYNTHIA L DARK                     $221.59

476464  05/03/2021 106713  ANDREW S DEFREECE                  $41.46

476465  05/03/2021 032872  DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY              $71.41

476466  05/03/2021 137331  BASTIAN DERICHS                    $87.70

476468  05/03/2021 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $315.00

476469  05/03/2021 143444  ELIZA R DONLEY                     $59.27

476470  05/03/2021 139349  TERRIN D DORATHY                   $24.70

476471  05/03/2021 033901  DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER           $8,811.68

476472  05/03/2021 138426  KELLY D EALY                       $136.14

476473  05/03/2021 143165  EDGENUITY INC                      $47,260.50

476474  05/03/2021 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $159,700.54

476475  05/03/2021 133823  REBECCA S EHRHORN                  $335.78

476476  05/03/2021 038140  ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.              $15,600.92

476477  05/03/2021 141577  ELITE PROFESSIONALS HOME CARE LLC  $6,357.00

476478  05/03/2021 131007  ELMAN & CO INC                     $1,930.00

476480  05/03/2021 142407  SAMANTHA L ENGEL                   $44.35

476481  05/03/2021 102720  EPCO LTD INC                       $3,136.00

476482  05/03/2021 137016  ANGELA L FERGUSON                  $89.10

Apr 27, 2021 3

18



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476483  05/03/2021 142378  FIS DATA SYSTEMS INC               $200.00

476485  05/03/2021 141511  JENNIFER M FITZKE                  $30.18

476486  05/03/2021 138877  KATHERINE L FOLK                   $19.49

476487  05/03/2021 133872  FRED J MILLER INC                  $484.00

476488  05/03/2021 135137  PAUL A GABEL                       $181.44

476489  05/03/2021 044155  GENERAL FIRE & SAFETY EQUIPMENT CO $623.00

476490  05/03/2021 106660  GLASSMASTERS INC                   $725.00

476491  05/03/2021 044886  GOODWILL INDUSTRIES INC            $559.00

476492  05/03/2021 138427  JEFF T GUSTAFSON                   $241.92

476493  05/03/2021 143214  H2I GROUP INC                      $1,100.00

476494  05/03/2021 139818  ANGELA R HAASE                     $47.04

476495  05/03/2021 137505  KATHARINE L HADAN                  $394.00

476496  05/03/2021 143430  HAROLD K SCHOLZ CO                 $255.00

476497  05/03/2021 F03042  HARRIS COMPUTER CORP               $211.40

476498  05/03/2021 140889  DEANNA L HAYES                     $24.08

476499  05/03/2021 048475  HEARTLAND FOUNDATION               $51,800.00

476500  05/03/2021 109808  CHERYL L HEIMES                    $82.26

476501  05/03/2021 102842  HELGET GAS PRODUCTS INC            $3.31

476502  05/03/2021 108478  DAVID C HEMPHILL                   $21.06

476503  05/03/2021 141513  MELISSA M HENNINGS                 $98.28

476504  05/03/2021 139305  JUSTIN A HIGGINS                   $180.31

476505  05/03/2021 048845  CAMILLE H HINZ                     $28.62

476506  05/03/2021 138782  JACOB W HIRZ                       $106.40

476507  05/03/2021 048940  HOBBY LOBBY STORES INC             $29.98

476513  05/03/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $115,598.84

476514  05/03/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $185.28

476515  05/03/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $832.35

476516  05/03/2021 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $41.85

Apr 27, 2021 4

19



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476517  05/03/2021 049320  HONEYMAN RENT ALL                  $38.71

476518  05/03/2021 101533  DIANE F HOWARD                     $26.94

476519  05/03/2021 143438  MELINDA HRABIK                     $25.00

476520  05/03/2021 137426  HUGHES MULCH PRODUCTS LLC          $330.00

476521  05/03/2021 130283  KARA L HUTTON                      $35.67

476522  05/03/2021 133397  HY-VEE INC                         $797.72

476523  05/03/2021 133397  HY-VEE INC                         $1,018.29

476524  05/03/2021 049851  HY-VEE INC                         $1,104.57

476525  05/03/2021 049850  HY-VEE INC                         $161.72

476526  05/03/2021 133176  INGERSOLL RAND COMPANY INDUSTRIAL  $208.35

476527  05/03/2021 136349  SCOTT H INGWERSON                  $14.90

476528  05/03/2021 142203  INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LLC    $337.92

476529  05/03/2021 138126  INSTRUMENTALIST AWARDS LLC         $513.00

476530  05/03/2021 102958  ALL BATTERY CENTERS INC            $262.95

476531  05/03/2021 139763  CALVIN L JACOBS                    $14.89

476532  05/03/2021 131157  CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN       $116.72

476533  05/03/2021 136953  DELI MANAGEMENT INC                $470.09

476534  05/03/2021 143111  JEFFREY CHAMBERS                   $1,850.00

476535  05/03/2021 133037  JENSEN TIRE & AUTO #15             $59.43

476536  05/03/2021 083400  TYCO FIRE & SECURITY MANAGEMENT INC $3,328.16

476538  05/03/2021 135373  LINDA K JOHNSON                    $25.76

476539  05/03/2021 139793  STACY JOLLEY                       $1,417.40

476540  05/03/2021 143439  CAYLE JONES                        $25.00

476542  05/03/2021 142898  JUST FOR KIDS THERAPY INC          $452.25

476543  05/03/2021 132265  CATHERINE A KEISER                 $57.06

476544  05/03/2021 140881  DARIN C KELBERLAU                  $335.00

476546  05/03/2021 143440  ELENI LYNNE KNAPP                  $50.00

476547  05/03/2021 143441  JOY L KNAPP                        $50.00

Apr 27, 2021 5

20



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476548  05/03/2021 141957  MELINDA S KRAUSE                   $37.86

476549  05/03/2021 135814  KELLI K KRAUSE                     $379.34

476552  05/03/2021 135257  LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC         $1,645.51

476553  05/03/2021 058861  B & K MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS LLC   $862.30

476555  05/03/2021 133643  JODY C LINDQUIST                   $19.60

476556  05/03/2021 108106  LEANNA MACDONALD                   $3,377.25

476557  05/03/2021 137281  DMG INC                            $3,798.75

476559  05/03/2021 138341  MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES HOLDINGS $31,934.00

476561  05/03/2021 141523  KELLI M MCWILLIAMS                 $19.77

476562  05/03/2021 064260  MECHANICAL SALES INC.              $3,658.00

476563  05/03/2021 136470  CHAD M MEISGEIER                   $34.94

476564  05/03/2021 064600  METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC $6,118.00

476566  05/03/2021 133403  AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK             $14,502.51

476567  05/03/2021 139339  SPORTS FACILITY MAINTENANCE LLC    $15,230.00

476568  05/03/2021 064950  MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC            $771.00

476570  05/03/2021 142409  LAUREN R MILBOURN                  $86.86

476571  05/03/2021 065400  MILLARD LUMBER INC                 $182.15

476572  05/03/2021 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $456.54

476573  05/03/2021 141026  JASON MITERA                       $36.05

476574  05/03/2021 142525  MICHAEL J MONTEMARANO              $43.57

476576  05/03/2021 140990  LAURA M MORRIS                     $108.53

476577  05/03/2021 134532  MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC          $2,500.00

476578  05/03/2021 143436  NICK A MOYER                       $112.00

476580  05/03/2021 067000  NASCO                              $414.26

476581  05/03/2021 131854  NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC PRESS ASSN     $156.00

476582  05/03/2021 142457  NATIONAL SCIENCE ED LEADERSHIP ASSN $99.00

476583  05/03/2021 130548  NCS PEARSON INC                    $2,871.79

476584  05/03/2021 068445  NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC        $1,495.99

Apr 27, 2021 6

21



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476585  05/03/2021 099750  NEBRASKA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION       $245.00

476586  05/03/2021 142414  NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN CO           $3,549.11

476588  05/03/2021 134321  NEBRASKA STATE FIRE MARSHAL AGENCY $144.00

476589  05/03/2021 143282  NICOLE B NELSON                    $55.33

476590  05/03/2021 107732  BRIAN L NELSON                     $315.00

476591  05/03/2021 142353  ASHLEY B NODGAARD                  $47.94

476592  05/03/2021 141725  KELSEY J NODGAARD                  $54.36

476593  05/03/2021 143329  NOTABLE INC                        $792.00

476595  05/03/2021 100013  OFFICE DEPOT  84133510             $1,402.02

476596  05/03/2021 070245  RICHELIEU AMERICA LTD              $955.69

476597  05/03/2021 132778  MELANIE L OLSON                    $28.00

476598  05/03/2021 070800  OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT        $331,180.53

476599  05/03/2021 071039  OMAHA WINDUSTRIAL CO.              $8.10

476600  05/03/2021 071053  OMAHA WORLD HERALD                 $946.00

476601  05/03/2021 140402  OMNI FINANCIAL GROUP INC           $1,022.50

476602  05/03/2021 138662  KELLY D OSTRAND                    $21.50

476603  05/03/2021 142290  OVERDRIVE INC                      $9,129.78

476604  05/03/2021 071240  CHANCELLOR OF UNIVERSITY OF OXFORD $1,219.53

476605  05/03/2021 134428  ELIZABETH A PACHTA                 $208.71

476606  05/03/2021 137015  GEORGE M PARKER                    $33.82

476607  05/03/2021 132006  ANDREA L PARSONS                   $155.96

476608  05/03/2021 131610  PATRICIA D BUFFUM                  $540.00

476609  05/03/2021 133150  PENSKE TRUCK LEASING               $259.80

476610  05/03/2021 073040  PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC  $10,000.00

476611  05/03/2021 131835  PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP            $8,180.00

476612  05/03/2021 101663  PRESTWICK HOUSE INC                $447.80

476613  05/03/2021 134598  PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC           $8,127.61

476614  05/03/2021 142795  QUALTRICS LLC                      $16,450.00

Apr 27, 2021 7

22



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476615  05/03/2021 136035  MICHAEL T QUINT                    $238.96

476616  05/03/2021 109810  BETHANY B RAY                      $206.58

476618  05/03/2021 135690  DEIDRE M REEH                      $90.61

476619  05/03/2021 078760  REGAL AWARDS INC                   $35.00

476620  05/03/2021 134858  JENNIFER L REID                    $30.24

476621  05/03/2021 139853  RENZE DISPLAY CO                   $1,264.56

476622  05/03/2021 143443  MARK RETTELE                       $25.00

476623  05/03/2021 135484  KRISTI L RICHLING                  $76.72

476626  05/03/2021 079310  ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER            $35.00

476627  05/03/2021 134882  LINDA A ROHMILLER                  $16.02

476628  05/03/2021 142974  ADAM W ROKES                       $622.50

476629  05/03/2021 139359  DISTRIBUTED WEBSITE CORPORATION    $595.00

476630  05/03/2021 143241  MICHAEL J RUCKER                   $111.66

476631  05/03/2021 143167  SADOFF & RUDOY INDUSTRIES LLP      $375.97

476632  05/03/2021 081725  KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS             $73.94

476633  05/03/2021 143172  GATEWAY EDUCATION HOLDINGS LLC     $85,070.55

476634  05/03/2021 143408  DUSTIN R SCHROEDER                 $11.54

476635  05/03/2021 137416  NICHOLE E SCHWAB                   $110.43

476637  05/03/2021 082905  KIMBERLY A SECORA                  $14.50

476638  05/03/2021 140383  SENTRY INSURANCE, A MUTUAL COMPANY $96,742.32

476640  05/03/2021 143104  SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP             $82,029.55

476641  05/03/2021 132590  SILVERSTONE GROUP INC              $5,489.00

476642  05/03/2021 143266  NATHAN M SMITH                     $80.92

476643  05/03/2021 140891  MARCIA L SMITH                     $146.43

476644  05/03/2021 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $110,276.37

476645  05/03/2021 142226  MICHELLE R SOMERVILLE              $52.25

476646  05/03/2021 143164  SOUTHWEST PLASTIC BINDING CO       $5,436.00

476647  05/03/2021 109843  SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS CO           $3,659.73

Apr 27, 2021 8

23



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476648  05/03/2021 136316  EVA M STALLING                     $11.65

476649  05/03/2021 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $5,759.13

476650  05/03/2021 137093  JAMIE R STINSON                    $130.08

476651  05/03/2021 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORATION NEBRASKA INC $478,989.89

476652  05/03/2021 137011  CARRIE A SWANEY                    $117.88

476655  05/03/2021 135006  STEVE D THRONE                     $534.46

476656  05/03/2021 141524  SONIA E TIPP                       $73.25

476658  05/03/2021 138927  TOTAL TOOL SUPPLY INC              $260.07

476659  05/03/2021 141772  TRED-MARK FINANCIAL INC            $569.94

476660  05/03/2021 107719  KIMBERLY P TRISLER                 $33.60

476661  05/03/2021 106493  TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.               $1,824.15

476663  05/03/2021 100923  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA LINCOLN     $430.00

476664  05/03/2021 068834  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN     $8,881.08

476665  05/03/2021 068875  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA MED CENTER  $28,547.75

476666  05/03/2021 068840  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA    $68,000.00

476667  05/03/2021 138046  AUTO LUBE INC                      $85.80

476668  05/03/2021 143061  JUSTIN J VANDERVORT                $63.24

476669  05/03/2021 137877  SIXTO-RUEDA VASQUEZ                $40.64

476670  05/03/2021 090678  VERITIV OPERATING CO               $910.00

476672  05/03/2021 135863  RUDOLPH A VLCEK III                $1,080.00

476673  05/03/2021 102529  VOC BIO LLC                        $325.00

476675  05/03/2021 143249  ELIZABETH A WALLACE                $44.80

476676  05/03/2021 131112  LINDA M WALTERS                    $55.33

476677  05/03/2021 143250  CAYLEN C D WARREN                  $13.66

476678  05/03/2021 141464  ANTHONY J WEERS                    $70.53

476679  05/03/2021 136602  JACQUIE M WELCH                    $328.25

476680  05/03/2021 140929  ERIC C WELTE                       $95.42

476681  05/03/2021 107563  CAROL M WEST                       $155.85

Apr 27, 2021 9

24



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 476682  05/03/2021 136909  WHEELER CONTRACTING INC            $3,224.00

476683  05/03/2021 137485  WENDY A WIGHT                      $92.79

476684  05/03/2021 139618  AARON J WILLEMS                    $116.67

476685  05/03/2021 143354  LEO WILSON JR                      $46.48

476686  05/03/2021 096200  YOUNG & WHITE                      $24,118.00

476687  05/03/2021 135996  YRC INC                            $185.47

476689  05/03/2021 142269  WHC NE LLC                         $18,035.19

476690  05/03/2021 137020  CHAD R ZIMMERMAN                   $255.36

476691  05/03/2021 136855  PAUL R ZOHLEN                      $40.32

476692  05/03/2021 135647  LACHELLE L ZUHLKE                  $48.05

E103305 04/15/2021 136272  BEAR CONSTRUCTION INC              $6,645.00

E103306 04/19/2021 136961  ABANTE LLC                         $1,302.30

E103307 04/19/2021 135082  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC  $156.00

E103308 04/19/2021 038100  CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTR INC  $3,055.29

E103309 04/19/2021 143184  ENTERPRISE FM TRUST                $1,727.60

E103310 04/19/2021 040537  WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC           $2,726.05

E103312 04/19/2021 100928  J W PEPPER & SON INC.              $116.48

E103313 04/19/2021 107539  MUELLER ROBAK LLC                  $15,000.00

E103317 05/03/2021 012590  HOLLAND USA INC                    $58.48

E103319 05/03/2021 106436  AQUA-CHEM INC                      $2,029.55

E103320 05/03/2021 102727  B & H PHOTO                        $179.70

E103321 05/03/2021 099646  BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE         $274.80

E103322 05/03/2021 139474  SMA ENTERPRISES INC                $400.00

E103324 05/03/2021 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $7,812.80

E103326 05/03/2021 019559  BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC      $2,958.79

E103327 05/03/2021 140156  CAMBIUM DATA INC                   $1,400.00

E103328 05/03/2021 024260  CENTER TROPHY COMPANY              $63.00

E103329 05/03/2021 090270  UNITED DISTRIBUTORS  INC           $925.42

Apr 27, 2021 10

25



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E103330 05/03/2021 026057  CONTROL MASTERS INC                $6,057.40

E103331 05/03/2021 109063  CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE INC    $150.00

E103333 05/03/2021 100577  CURTIS 1000 INC                    $179.58

E103334 05/03/2021 032800  DEMCO INC                          $270.24

E103335 05/03/2021 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $9,415.08

E103336 05/03/2021 135509  DIGIORGIO'S SPORTSWEAR INC         $195.00

E103337 05/03/2021 036520  EASTERN NEBRASKA HUMAN SVCS AGENCY $33,264.00

E103338 05/03/2021 132240  EDUCATION LOGISTICS, INC           $11,195.80

E103339 05/03/2021 038023  EGAN SUPPLY COMPANY                $2,751.54

E103340 05/03/2021 132066  ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC            $748.00

E103341 05/03/2021 130632  DANIELSON ENTERPRISES INC          $841.13

E103342 05/03/2021 040537  WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC           $310.55

E103343 05/03/2021 133919  FILTER SHOP INC                    $8,337.03

E103344 05/03/2021 133960  FIREGUARD INC                      $2,994.83

E103347 05/03/2021 041100  FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC       $11,359.13

E103348 05/03/2021 140791  FRONTLINE PRIVATE SECURITY LLC     $645.00

E103349 05/03/2021 044891  THE PROPHET CORPORATION            $160.08

E103351 05/03/2021 044950  GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY         $4,767.71

E103352 05/03/2021 048786  HILLYARD INC                       $914.20

E103353 05/03/2021 100928  J W PEPPER & SON INC.              $4.99

E103354 05/03/2021 130994  JOHNSON CONTROLS INC               $595.51

E103355 05/03/2021 054630  JOHNSTONE SUPPLY                   $1,171.83

E103356 05/03/2021 107192  FLYNN INNOVATIONS LLC              $468.18

E103357 05/03/2021 099217  LAKESHORE EQUIPMENT CO             $571.27

E103358 05/03/2021 135156  LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                $1,416.66

E103359 05/03/2021 106469  LEGO EDUCATION NORTH AMERICA LLC   $6,398.00

E103360 05/03/2021 059470  LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC    $1,563.00

E103361 05/03/2021 139232  HARWOOD PIZZA INC                  $77.48

Apr 27, 2021 11

26



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E103362 05/03/2021 108227  MAX'S BODY SHOP INC                $523.11

E103363 05/03/2021 137947  MECHANICAL SALES PARTS INC         $1,696.60

E103364 05/03/2021 065233  MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC      $1,728.88

E103365 05/03/2021 063150  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO           $428.96

E103366 05/03/2021 063115  MULTI-HEALTH SYSTEMS               $1,759.60

E103367 05/03/2021 141416  NEARPOD INC                        $1,140.00

E103368 05/03/2021 068334  NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC            $3,123.71

E103369 05/03/2021 141960  NOODLETOOLS INC                    $2,615.00

E103370 05/03/2021 134725  OMAHA CASING CO INC                $315.00

E103371 05/03/2021 071190  OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY OMAHA        $450.00

E103372 05/03/2021 071545  PAPER CORPORATION                  $42,840.00

E103373 05/03/2021 072760  PITSCO INC                         $2,854.70

E103374 05/03/2021 138907  PLIBRICO COMPANY LLC               $1,178.93

E103375 05/03/2021 137779  JARDINE QUALITY IRRIGATION INC     $4,851.35

E103376 05/03/2021 078420  RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.        $17,545.00

E103377 05/03/2021 100642  REALLY GOOD STUFF LLC              $141.73

E103378 05/03/2021 084930  SUPER DUPER INC                    $109.90

E103379 05/03/2021 088709  AMERICAN EAGLE COMPANY INC         $417.15

E103380 05/03/2021 133969  TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY    $5,812.19

E103381 05/03/2021 140681  TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE LLC             $1,823.25

E103382 05/03/2021 138304  TIME MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS            $15,397.00

E103383 05/03/2021 138047  AUTO PROS OF MILLARD INC           $3,343.99

E103384 05/03/2021 090214  UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO INC      $18.02

E103385 05/03/2021 137707  UTILITY TRENCHING INC              $1,040.00

E103386 05/03/2021 092323  VIRCO INC                          $242.61

E103389 05/03/2021 093650  VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC              $202.96

E103390 05/03/2021 139738  WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS INC   $17,260.89

E103391 05/03/2021 093765  WATER ENGINEERING, INC.            $1,650.00

Apr 27, 2021 12

27



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 E103392 05/03/2021 094174  WEST MUSIC CO INC                  $171.72

E103393 05/03/2021 139185  WEST OMAHA WINSUPPLY CO            $1,649.23

E103394 05/03/2021 137878  WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC        $842.65

E103395 05/03/2021 109852  WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO               $703.17

01 - Total $2,491,864.82

02 26797   05/03/2021 130674  BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL               $183.31

26798   05/03/2021 135036  BRYAN ELEMENTARY                   $69.06

26799   05/03/2021 133178  COTTONWOOD ELEMENTARY              $57.39

26800   05/03/2021 135041  HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY               $64.01

26801   05/03/2021 131694  HOLLING HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY         $89.49

26802   05/03/2021 134284  KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL               $202.58

26803   05/03/2021 065438  MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL          $992.58

26804   05/03/2021 065410  MILLARD PUB SCHL ADMIN ACTIVITY FND $226.37

26805   05/03/2021 065440  MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL          $1,274.22

26806   05/03/2021 065443  MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL           $19.38

26807   05/03/2021 135042  MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY               $86.94

26808   05/03/2021 133370  MORTON ELEMENTARY                  $30.81

26809   05/03/2021 130091  NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL                $91.42

26810   05/03/2021 100013  OFFICE DEPOT  84133510             $28.50

26811   05/03/2021 136841  REAGAN ELEMENTARY                  $104.75

26812   05/03/2021 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $1,391,558.98

26813   05/03/2021 135048  WHEELER ELEMENTARY                 $96.40

02 - Total $1,395,176.19

06 476415  05/03/2021 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $4,300.94

476425  05/03/2021 139321  BIZCO INC                          $2,382.00

476441  05/03/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $185,213.75

476468  05/03/2021 132669  DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC            $1,190.00

476551  05/03/2021 058775  LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC      $2,113.18

Apr 27, 2021 13

28



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

06 476649  05/03/2021 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $63,531.00

E103324 05/03/2021 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $776.00

E103387 05/03/2021 141363  PATTI BANKS ASSOCIATES LLC         $1,597.50

06 - Total $261,104.37

07 476395  05/03/2021 010040  A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC      $132.98

476415  05/03/2021 133480  BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY    $98,263.01

476508  05/03/2021 143355  HOLLAND BASHAM ARCHITECTS INC      $149,272.80

476551  05/03/2021 058775  LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC      $1,750.00

476558  05/03/2021 142914  MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC         $2,729.00

476579  05/03/2021 142914  MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC         $190.00

476659  05/03/2021 141772  TRED-MARK FINANCIAL INC            $64,022.40

E103327 05/03/2021 140156  CAMBIUM DATA INC                   $118,755.68

07 - Total $435,115.87

11 476391  04/22/2021 143445  HOLE LATTA YUM LLC                 $62.00

476411  05/03/2021 099646  BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE         $339.75

476422  05/03/2021 131074  LISA M BERTAGNI                    $121.85

476474  05/03/2021 037525  EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3        $4,000.00

476533  05/03/2021 136953  DELI MANAGEMENT INC                $324.90

476545  05/03/2021 143128  JUDITH T KIRST                     $194.31

476554  05/03/2021 099395  LINCOLN PUBLIC SCHOOLS             $300.00

476560  05/03/2021 140110  MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC          $5,616.06

476595  05/03/2021 100013  OFFICE DEPOT  84133510             $77.78

476617  05/03/2021 141756  READ TO THEM INC                   $5,043.25

476639  05/03/2021 137681  ANNE M SERVAIS                     $19.98

476644  05/03/2021 101476  SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES            $498.49

476651  05/03/2021 139843  STUDENT TRANSPORATION NEBRASKA INC $658.29

476662  05/03/2021 131819  JEAN R UBBELOHDE                   $59.49

E103311 04/19/2021 138560  IXL LEARNING INC                   $495.00

Apr 27, 2021 14

29



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

11 E103315 05/03/2021 136961  ABANTE LLC                         $282.88

E103325 05/03/2021 099220  DICK BLICK CO                      $173.26

E103331 05/03/2021 109063  CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE INC    $300.00

E103347 05/03/2021 041100  FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC       $5,363.31

E103388 05/03/2021 135597  VISTA HIGHER LEARNING              $5,309.02

11 - Total $29,239.62

14 476399  05/03/2021 097000  AETNA LIFE INSURANCE CO            $188,714.40

476636  05/03/2021 142167  SCRIP POINT                        $8,000.00

14 - Total $196,714.40

17 476441  05/03/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $916.80

476456  05/03/2021 026443  CORE KNOWLEDGE FOUNDATION          $32,902.86

476476  05/03/2021 038140  ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.              $7,602.70

476484  05/03/2021 040919  FISHER SCIENTIFIC                  $55.04

476569  05/03/2021 065200  MIDWEST SHOP SUPPLIES INC          $1,519.00

476572  05/03/2021 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $1,765.00

476580  05/03/2021 067000  NASCO                              $6,254.43

476584  05/03/2021 068445  NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC        $817.00

476587  05/03/2021 068684  CYRGUS CO LLC                      $1,649.00

476649  05/03/2021 142102  STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION     $388.13

476657  05/03/2021 131729  THEATRICAL MEDIA SERVICES INC.     $23,199.89

476661  05/03/2021 106493  TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.               $2,313.00

E103316 05/03/2021 011051  ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT         $1,753.78

E103318 05/03/2021 102832  AOI                                $449.72

E103320 05/03/2021 102727  B & H PHOTO                        $9.01

E103324 05/03/2021 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $185.00

E103332 05/03/2021 134039  CROUCH RECREATION INC              $5,500.00

E103345 05/03/2021 041086  FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC               $5,248.75

17 - Total $92,529.11

Apr 27, 2021 15

30



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  May 3, 2021

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

50 476407  05/03/2021 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $17.50

476441  05/03/2021 133970  CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS           $792.21

476448  05/03/2021 142704  CITIBANK N.A.                      $33.96

476479  05/03/2021 143446  TERRY D HESKETT JR                 $2,096.00

476537  05/03/2021 054492  JIM L JOHNSON                      $450.00

476541  05/03/2021 138648  RICK W JONES                       $100.00

476550  05/03/2021 135103  RON KROENKE                        $210.00

476575  05/03/2021 143442  RICHARD THOMAS MOORE               $60.00

476624  05/03/2021 143434  GEORGE LEVON ROATH III             $550.00

476625  05/03/2021 141708  ROBERT BOSCH TOOL CORP             $1,340.07

476653  05/03/2021 138062  DUSTIN P TAYLOR                    $580.00

476654  05/03/2021 137472  MARK THOLEN                        $150.00

476657  05/03/2021 131729  THEATRICAL MEDIA SERVICES INC.     $10,000.00

476671  05/03/2021 143271  VITALSIGNS UNLIMITED INC           $140.00

476674  05/03/2021 133759  RORY VOS                           $100.00

476692  05/03/2021 135647  LACHELLE L ZUHLKE                  $47.88

E103314 04/19/2021 139738  WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS INC   $336.28

E103324 05/03/2021 019111  BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT          $250.00

E103335 05/03/2021 033473  DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC             $59.49

E103347 05/03/2021 041100  FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC       $628.95

50 - Total $17,942.34

Overall - Total $4,919,686.72

Apr 27, 2021 16

31



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: Second Reading and Approval of Policy 6670: Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Assessment- Homebound Instruction 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021 
 
 

 

Background/ 
Description: 

In order to prepare for Homebound Instruction in 2021-2022, we are 
updating the Policy and Rule related to Homebound Instruction. 

 
 

 

Action Desired: Second Reading and Approval of Policy 6670: Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Assessment- Homebound Instruction 

  
  
Policy/Strategic 
Plan Reference: 

N/A 

 
 

 

Responsible 
Person(s): 

Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Terry Houlton, Dr. Tony Weers, Andy Defreece,  

 
 

 

Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

 

 

 

32



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
 
Homebound Instruction 6670 
 
 
Homebound instruction in a student’s home or in a local hospital and under the supervision of a responsible adult 
may be provided when the student is ill, or injured, or has a documented medical condition and is unable to attend 
regular classes for an extended period of time.  Homebound instruction shall only be provided when the student’s 
illness, or injury, or documented medical condition is are such that the student can benefit from instruction and no 
other provision will meet the student’s educational needs. 
 
 
 
Related Policy and Rule:  4141, 4141.1, 6635, 6670.1, 6675, 6675.1, 6680, 6680.1 
 
Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: August 23, 1999; May 21, 2001; May 20, 2013; December 2, 2019, May 3, 2021 Omaha, NE 
Reviewed: November 19, 2007 
 

33



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

Agenda Item:    Policy 5410 Substance Use   

  

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021   

  

Background/                

Description:         In order to ensure the highest possible standards of learning as well as the 

safety, health, and well-being of students, the District endorses a substance 

abuse policy, which will aid students to abstain from the use of illegal 

drugs, intervene early when student use is detected, take corrective 

disciplinary action when necessary, and provide aftercare support for 

students. 

 

                                                                                                       

Action Desired: Reaffirm          

   

Policy /  

Strategic Plan 

Reference:      N/A 

 

   

Responsible Person(s): Bill Jelkin, Director of Student Services 

  

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

 

 

 

34



Student Services 

 

Substance Use                                                                                                  5410 
 
 

In order to ensure the highest possible standards of learning as well as the safety, health, and well-being of students, 

the District endorses a substance abuse policy which will aid students to abstain from the use of illegal drugs, 

intervene early when student use is detected, take corrective disciplinary action when necessary, and provide 

aftercare support for students. 

 
As used in this Policy "drugs” shall include tobacco, nicotine, alcohol, controlled substances as defined by state law, 

other mood or behavior-affecting substances which are not taken for medical purposes, and “look-alike” drugs. 

 
I.            PREVENTION 

 
The District will adopt an age appropriate developmentally based drug, tobacco, nicotine and alcohol 

education and prevention program, which includes in its scope the legal, social, and health consequences of 

drug, tobacco and alcohol use and provides information and techniques for the resistance of peer pressure 

for use of illicit drugs, tobacco, nicotine or alcohol.  The program shall be for all students in all grades of the 

schools operated and served by the District from the early childhood level through grade twelve (12). 

 
The District will provide students with information and activities focused on preventing students from using 

drugs.   Prevention activities will be centered around the instructional program, guidance and counseling, 

school climate, and family and community involvement. 

 
II.          INTERVENTION 

 
The District shall make available to students, information about any drug, tobacco, nicotine or alcohol 

counseling, or rehabilitation, or re-entry programs available to students. 

 
The District shall establish and maintain an assistance program, through a team approach, to aid students 

who are chemically involved to successfully address their harmful involvement with chemicals and to 

continue in a school program. 

 
III.         DISCIPLINE 

 
The District shall notify all students that the use of illicit drugs and the unlawful possession and use of 

tobacco, e-cigarette type products, and alcohol are wrong and harmful. 

 
The rules established by the District shall clearly prohibit the unlawful possession and use or distribution of 

illicit drugs, tobacco, e-cigarette type products, and alcohol by students on school premises or as a part of 

any District activities and it shall be applicable to students in all of the schools in the District. 

 
The District shall adopt disciplinary sanctions consistent with local, state and federal laws up to and 

including expulsion and referral for prosecution of students who violate the District’s Standards for Student 

Conduct and a description of sanctions as described by the rules of the District including sanctions which 

require the completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program. 

 
Students have the right to attend school in an environment free of drugs.  Possession or use of tobacco, or e-

cigarette type products, or possession, distribution or use of mood or behavior-affecting substances, alcohol, 

"look-a-likes” or drug paraphernalia, are prohibited on school grounds and at school-sponsored or school-

related activities. 

 
The consequences for possession, distribution, or use of drugs, controlled substances, mood altering drugs, 

unauthorized medication, alcohol, or possession of drug-related paraphernalia will result in disciplinary 

action. 

35



It is the policy of the District to take positive action through education, counseling, parental involvement, 

medical referral, and police referral where appropriate in the handling of incidents in the schools involving 

mood or behavior-affecting substances or alcohol. 

 
School property and student property may be searched by school authorities in the interest of the 

maintenance of the health and safety of students and staff, the educational process, and to further school 

purposes. 

 
Students may be subjected to alcohol and other drug screening and testing technology pursuant to District 

Policy 5490 and Rule 5490.1. 

 
IV. TREATMENT 

 
The District will work cooperatively with community treatment personnel to facilitate the educational 

program of students in treatment. 

 
V. COOPERATION PROGRAMS 

 
The District will work cooperatively with the students, parents, guardians and community treatment 

personnel, to support aftercare and post-treatment plans for students returning from treatment. 

 
VI. NOTICES 

 
The District shall provide, distribute and shall give to all students, parents and guardians a copy of the 

Standards for Student Conduct and the statement of disciplinary sanctions enacted pursuant to this Policy 

and shall notify parents, guardians and students that compliance with the Standards of Student Conduct are 

mandatory for all the students in the District. 

 
Related Policies and Rules:  5410.1,   5480,    5480.1,    5490,    5490.1 

 
 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-254 et seq. 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-265 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-267 (6) 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-293 
 

 
Policy Approved: July 16, 1990                                                                                                  

Revised: July 6, 1998; September 25, 2000, May 16, 2011; April 21, 2014                                    

Reaffirmed: April 19, 2010, May 3, 2021 

Millard Public Schools 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

Agenda Item:    Rule 5410.1  

  

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021    

  

Background/                

Description:         In order to ensure the highest possible standards of learning as well as the 

safety, health, and well-being of students, the District endorses a substance 

abuse policy, which will aid students to abstain from the use of illegal drugs, 

intervene early when student use is detected, take corrective disciplinary 

action when necessary, and provide aftercare support for students. 

                                      

                                                                                                       

Action Desired: Reaffirm         

   

Policy /  

Strategic Plan 

Reference:      N/A 

 

   

Responsible Person(s): Bill Jelkin, Director of Student Services 

  

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

 

 

 

37



Student Services 

 
Substance Use 5410.1 

 
I. PREVENTION. 

 

A. The purpose of the District’s alcohol, tobacco and other drugs (ATOD) prevention program is to 

promote wellness and healthy life styles.  To accomplish this, the program will be designed and 

implemented to develop a respect for a healthy mind and body. Students will learn how the body 

functions, how personal habits contribute to good health, and how drugs affect the body and the 

nervous system. 

 
B. The  prevention  program  will  focus  on  classroom  instruction,  and  guidance  and  counseling. 

Involvement of students, parents and other community members is essential for the success of 

District ATOD prevention activities. 

 
C. The ATOD prevention program shall be an age appropriate and developmentally based program 

for all students in all grade levels from early childhood through grade twelve (12). 

 
1. Instruction Program. 

 

a. All schools will have instructional programs which promote student wellness and 

which assist students in making responsible decisions about the use of ATOD. 

Current and accurate information about drugs and their effects upon the body 

and nervous system is only one (1) component of an instructional prevention 

program.  Other components include instruction and skill development related to 

self-awareness, decision making, and interpersonal relationships. 

 
b. In the elementary schools, major responsibility for providing instruction about 

the prevention of ATOD use/abuse will be provided by health education 

programs, following specific objectives to be covered.  The health curriculum 

will be consistently reviewed, evaluated, and updated.   Other areas of the 

elementary curriculum will reinforce the prevention concepts taught in the health 

program. 

 
c. In the secondary schools, components of the instructional prevention program 

will be integrated into a variety of required and elective courses throughout the 

curriculum. 

 
d. All staff will be  provided training in  prevention strategies and  in  any new 

curriculum. Instructional materials will be available for each school to implement 

the program. 

 
e. Each school will formulate a prevention plan based on that school’s needs that 

complements and supplements the District instructional program.  These plans 

will be an integral part of the District’s comprehensive prevention plan and will 

be reviewed and updated annually by staff and parents and by students, as 

appropriate. 

 
2. Guidance and Counseling. 

 

a. Guidance and counseling personnel will assist teachers and administrators with 

the implementation of classroom curriculum and school ATOD prevention plans. 

 
b. Counselors will work with students, individually and in appropriate groups, to 

supplement ATOD prevention instruction and skill development.   Counselors 

38



will also work with staff and parents to maximize the prevention efforts of the 

school. 

 
c. All students shall receive a statement that the use of illicit drugs and the unlawful 

possession and use of tobacco and alcohol is wrong and harmful. 

 
3. School Environment.  Prevention efforts will emphasize maintaining a safe, positive and 

healthy school environment that encourages the student’s positive self-concept; the 

student’s enthusiasm for learning; outlets for student self-development and creativity 

which acknowledge individual skills, needs, and interests; responsible student decision- 

making and problem-solving; and recognition of the special needs of high-risk students or 

families experiencing undue stress. 

 
4. Family and Community.  The successful prevention of drug involvement must include a 

plan to ensure that parents and the community are aware and knowledgeable of programs 

and services available to them and their children.  Parents and community members will 

be actively involved in the community/school partnership. 

 
II. INTERVENTION. 

 

A. All schools will establish and maintain an ATOD intervention program.  The goal of the ATOD 

program shall be to eliminate ATOD use by students. 

 
B. Ongoing in-service training will be provided for all staff.  Training will include dimensions of the 

family illness and dynamics of the addiction process; enabling behaviors; intervention techniques; 

children in chemically dependent families; student experimentation, abuse and dependency; 

parental involvement and community resources; prevention issues and strategies; treatment and 

aftercare support; and implementation of the program into the classroom/building. 

 
1. ATOD Intervention Program - Personnel Responsibilities. 

 

a. Administration has the primary responsibility for implementation of the ATOD 

intervention program in each school. 

 
b.  Student Services  staff  will  perform leadership  roles  in  the  implementation of        

ATOD intervention programs. 

 
c. The principal in each school will identify staff responsible for the planning, 

implementation, and evaluation of the ATOD intervention program in their 

school. 

 
d. School staff, including all classified and certificated staff, shall be trained to 

recognize early symptoms of drug and alcohol use. 

 
2. ATOD Intervention Program – Processes. 

 

a. The principal in each school will be responsible for implementing an ATOD 

intervention program that contains the following elements: 

 
i. A referral system; 

 
ii. A confidential system of record keeping of ATOD referrals and 

interventions; and 

 
iii. Procedures for involving staff in the identification of students at high- 

risk ATOD use. 

39



III. DISCIPLINE. 
 

A. General.  The unlawful possession, use or distribution of alcoholic beverages, mood or behavior 

affecting substances, tobacco, e-cigarette type products,  drug paraphernalia, and look-a-like 

drugs on District property or premises or at any of the activities of any school in the District is 

prohibited. 

 
B. Definitions. 

 

1. “Alcoholic  beverages”  shall  mean  any  substance  subject  to  the  jurisdiction  of  the 

Nebraska Liquor Control Commission. 

 
2. “Mood or behavior affecting substances” shall mean alcoholic beverages; controlled 

substances as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-401, including but not limited to "uppers,” 

"downers,” barbiturates, amphetamines, LSD, heroin, hashish, hallucinogenics or cocaine; 

substances such as glue, to the extent any such substance is used for the purpose of mood 

or behavior alteration by a student; and any other substance which alters the mood or 

behavior and which is not taken for medical purposes (e.g. steroids). 

 
3. “Tobacco” shall mean tobacco products used for smoking, chewing, and as snuff. 

 
4. “Distribution” shall mean any sale, transfer, handling, transmitting, administering, or 

giving of the item in question, with or without an exchange of value. 

 
5. “Drug paraphernalia” shall mean all equipment, products, and materials of any kind 

which are used, intended for use, or designed for use, in manufacturing, injecting, 

ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing into the human body any controlled 

substance. 

 
6. “Look-a-like” (also known as imitation controlled substances) shall mean any substance 

which is not a controlled substance, but which by its appearance (including, but not 

limited  to,  color,  shape,  size,  markings,  or  packaging)  or  by  representations made, 

induced or are intended to induce, persons to believe that the substance is a controlled 

substance.   “Look-a-like” shall include any beverage containing alcohol or a beverage 

that is represented to contain alcohol. 

 
7. “Possession of a substance” shall mean situations where a student has on his person, 

within his personal property, within school property assigned to him or under his control, 

a substance prohibited under this Rule, while on school property or at a school sponsored 

or school-related activity. 

 
8. “Use of a substance” shall mean situations where there is reasonable suspicion to believe 

a student has assimilated a prohibited substance or is under the influence of the same 

while on school property or in attendance at a school-sponsored or school-related activity. 

Factors which may be taken into consideration are:  the odor of a prohibited substance on 

the student’s breath or clothes, glassy eyes, slurred speech, and/or physical mobility. 

 
C. Staffing and Other Procedures. 

 

1. Definitive assignments shall be given to staff personnel within each school related to 

ATOD detection and disciplinary procedures. 

 
a. The principal will be responsible for carrying out this Rule and its supporting 

procedures within the school. 

 
b. The principal will serve as the coordinator for records, reports and inquiries 

relating to the school ATOD prevention and disciplinary program. 

 

40



c. Staff members will advise the school’s administrative staff of any information 

pertaining to a violation or possible violation of this Rule.  Administrative staff 

members are the principal, assistant principal, and administrative assistant. 

 
d. Any administrative  staff   member   who   obtains  or   generates  information 

concerning a disciplinary matter subject to these provisions shall immediately 

inform the office of the Director of Student Services.  The Director of Student 

Services shall have the authority to intervene in any case involving the use, abuse 

or distribution of mood or behavior affecting substances, and may impose 

conditions or terms for readmittance of the student involved, and shall also have 

the authority to readmit the student prior to the conclusion of the term, of the 

suspension or exclusion. 

 
2. The name of any student involved in such a matter will not be released to the general 

public except as provided by law. 

 
3. The parents or guardian of an involved student shall be contacted and informed. 

 
D. Notification.  All students and their parents and guardian shall be given a copy, or a handbook 

containing a description, of the standards of conduct as described in this Rule or prohibited acts 

and the description of the disciplinary sanctions which will be imposed for violation of the 

prohibited acts.  The notice to the student, their parents or guardians shall include notice that 

compliance under the standards of conduct is mandatory. 

 
E. Voluntarily Seeking Help.    Information may be received  from  students  and/or  parents  who 

voluntarily seek help from school authorities concerning the student’s use of mood or behavior 

affecting substances before being found to be using or possessing such substances by school or law 

enforcement officials.  This information will be maintained in confidence and will not serve as a 

basis for disciplinary actions unless the student is currently under investigation for suspected 

substance use.  However, this does not provide immunity from disciplinary actions should these 

students continue to use, possess, or distribute such substances as provided herein. 

 
F. Community Liaison. 

 

1. The schools will cooperate with the police department by making every effort to identify 

and report any sources of supply of mood or behavior affecting substances and by 

developing an inservice instruction program for staff members. 

 
2. The schools will cooperate with the city or county health department and individual health 

care providers in appropriate health education and health care. 

 
3. The District shall provide to students and their parents and guardians information about 

any available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and re-entry programs. 

 
IV.         TREATMENT.     Counselors  will  be  responsible  for  ongoing  communication  and  cooperation  with 

community drug treatment personnel and for facilitating the educational programming of students in 

treatment. 

 
V. AFTERCARE. 

 

A. It is important that students returning to school from a community inpatient or outpatient treatment 

program be given aftercare support.  Primary aftercare responsibility for students returning from a 

treatment program rests with those students, their parents, and community treatment program 

personnel. 

 
B. School counselors will coordinate with the student, parents, and community treatment personnel to 

facilitate the aftercare plan at school. 

41



Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-401 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-254 et seq. 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-267 (6) 

 
Related Policies and Rules:   5400.1,         5410 

 

Rule Approved: July 16, 1990                                                                                                     

Revised: July 6, 1998; September 25, 2000; April 21, 2014                                                             

Reaffirmed: April 19, 2010, May 3, 2021 

Millard Public Schools 

Omaha, Nebraska 

42

http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5410.pdf


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 6670.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- 
Homebound Instruction 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021 
 
 

 

Background/ 
Description: 

In order to prepare for Homebound Instruction in 2021-2022, we are 
updating the Policy and Rule related to Homebound Instruction. 

 
 

 

Action Desired: Approval of Rule 6670.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- 
Homebound Instruction 

  
  
Policy/Strategic 
Plan Reference: 

N/A 

 
 

 

Responsible 
Person(s): 

Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Terry Houlton, Dr. Tony Weers, Andy Defreece,  

 
 

 

Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

 

 

 

43



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
 
Homebound Instruction  6670.1 
 
 

I. General Statement.  Homebound instruction may be provided to a student in his/her home or in a local hospital 
and under the  supervision of a responsible adult, when the student is unable to attend regular classes due to 
illness, or injury, or documented medical condition which results in the student’s extended absence from school. 
Homebound instruction shall only be provided when the student’s illness, or injury, or documented medical 
condition is are such that the student can benefit from instruction and no other provision will meet the student’s 
needs. 

 
II. Definitions. 

 
A. Homebound instruction shall mean educational instruction provided to a student online via approved 

District technology resources, in his/her home within District boundaries, or in a local hospital to which a 
student has been admitted for care of the illness, or injury, or documented medical condition.  

 
B. Under the supervision of a responsible adult shall mean the presence of the student’s parent or guardian or 

other adult as authorized by the parent or guardian, including hospital staff. 
 

C. Extended absence from school shall mean a medically prescribed absence from the regular classes the 
student attends.  The length of time a student may be absent from classes for a medically prescribed reason 
before homebound instruction begins will be individually determined and based upon, but not limited to the 
following:  duration of the absence, recurrence of the absences, and the ability of the student to participate 
in instruction as verified by a medical professional. 

 
D. Illness, or injury, or documented medical condition shall mean a medically diagnosed physical or mental 

condition that prohibits a student from attending regular classes. 
 

E. Core subject areas shall mean instruction in the following areas: reading, writing, mathematics, science and 
social studies. 

 
F. Medical Professional shall mean individuals licensed by the Department of Health and Human Services. 

 
III. Provision of Homebound Instruction. 

 
A. Homebound instruction shall be provided only when no other options are available to meet the student’s 

educational needs.  
 
B. The frequency and duration of homebound instruction shall be such instruction as is necessary for the 

student to progress in the core subject area classes that he/she is unable to attend. 
 

C. A medical professional shall sanction the student’s participation in homebound instruction, verifying that 
the student’s physical and mental condition will not be jeopardized by participation.  

 
D. Students who are residents of the District and attend a nonpublic school are eligible to receive homebound 

instruction. 
 

E. Students who are residents of the District and attend an exempt school are not eligible to receive 
homebound instruction, other than the instruction they may be entitled to receive as a student with a 
disability. 

 

44



F. Homebound instruction will be provided on regularly scheduled school days, following the approved 
school calendar, and during times that are ordinarily considered to be the school day for professional staff 
as provided by District Rule 4141.1.   

 
 

IV. Requests for Homebound Instruction. 
 

A. All requests for homebound instruction shall be referred to the Director of Special Education or designee. 
 

B. If the homebound student is not a student with a disability, a Multidisciplinary Team evaluation may be 
conducted to determine if the student is eligible to receive instruction as a student with a disability.  If the 
student is determined to be eligible to receive homebound instruction as a student with a disability, the 
student’s Individual Education Program (IEP) Team will identify the appropriate homebound instruction to 
be provided by the District. 

 
B. C. If the Multidisciplinary Team evaluation does not determine the student is eligible to receive special 
education services, a 504 Team may be convened.  If the student is determined to be eligible to receive homebound 
instruction as a student with a 504 Plan, the student’s 504 Team will identify the appropriate homebound instruction 
to be provided by the District. 
 

C. D. If the homebound student is a student with a disability, the student’s IEP or 504 Team will be convened 
to consider the student’s medical condition and identify the appropriate homebound instruction to be provided 
by the District. 

 
 
Related Policy and Rule:  4141, 4141.1, 6635, 6670, 6675, 6675.1, 6680, 6680.1 
 
Rule Approved:   May 21, 2001 
Revised:  May 20, 2013; December 2, 2019, May 3, 2021 Millard Public Schools 
Reviewed: November 19, 2007 Omaha, NE 

45



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item:   Reaffirm Policy 6750: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees 

Meeting Date:  May 3, 2021 

Background/     
Description:  This Policy is due for annual review. 

Action Desired: Reaffirm Policy 6750: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees 

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:      6750 

Responsible Person(s):         Nolan Beyer, Exec. Director of Activities, Athletics, & 
External Affairs 

Superintendent’s Signature: 

46



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
 
Student Fees 6750 

 
The District may require and collect fees or other funds from or on behalf of students or require students to furnish 
or provide materials, supplies, equipment, or attire consistent with the Public Elementary and Secondary Student Fee 
Authorization Act. 

 
The Superintendent (or designee) shall promulgate the rules and/or procedures necessary for implementation of this 
policy. For purposes of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2,133 and § 79-2,134, such rules and/or procedures, when adopted or 
approved, shall be incorporated in their entirety into this policy by this reference. 

 
Annually, the school board shall hold a public hearing at a regular or special meeting of the Board on a proposed 
student fee policy, following a review of the amount of money collected from students pursuant to, and the use of 
waivers provided in, the student fee policy for the prior school year. The student fee policy shall be adopted by a 
majority vote of the school board and shall be published in the student handbook. The Board shall provide a copy of 
the student handbook to every student at no cost to the student. 

 
Legal References: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2,125 et seq. 

Related Policies & Rules: 6750.1 

Policy Adopted:  July 15, 2002 
Reaffirmed: May 17, 2004; June 6, 2005; April 17, 2006; April 21, 
2008 April 13, 2009; February 15, 2010, May 1, 2017, May 4, 2020, 
May 3, 2021 
Revised: April 23, 2007 

Millard Public Schools 
Omaha Nebraska 

47



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Approval of Rule 6750.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment - Student Fees

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021

Background/
Description: Recommendations include the addition of fees for high school bowling, and

changes to AP Exams and the elementary, middle, and high school meal prices.

Action Desired: Approval of Rule 6750.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment - Student Fees

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Nolan Beyer, Executive Director of Activities, Athletics, & External Affairs

Superintendent’s Signature:

48



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees   6750.1  
  

Pursuant to Policy 6750 and Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2,135 et seq., the District may, and hereby does, require and collect fees or other funds 
from or on behalf of District students or require District students to furnish or provide, supplies, equipment, or attire as provided for 
herein below.  
  
I. Elementary School Fees:  

  
A. Extracurricular Activities*  

  
1. All Clubs: Students pay a fee of up to $30 (but not to exceed actual cost of conducting the club activities) for    

membership and activities in each club.  
  

2. All Clubs:  Students pay a fee of up to $15 (but not to exceed actual cost) for screen-printed club t-shirt.  
  

3. School will not fund competition beyond the state level.  
  

4. Choir:  Students pay a fee of up to $15 (but not to exceed actual cost) for screen-printed choir t-shirt.  
  

B. Special Transportation  
  

1. §79-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  
  

2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  
  

3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): n/a  
  

C. Copies of Files/Records  
  

1. Students pay 10 cents per page.  
  

D. Lost/Damaged Property  
    

1. Students pay for repair or replacement cost of property.  
  

E. Before/After School  
  

1. Mini-Classes:  Students pay up to $60 per class, including materials (6-8 sessions, but not to exceed actual cost).  
  

F. Summer/Night School*  
  

1. District Summer School: Students pay up to $155 (for no more than up to 3 instructional hours per day for 12 
days in June).  

  
2. Building Level Summer School:  Students pay up to $4 per hour, including materials.  

  
G. Breakfast/Lunch Programs*  

  
1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.50).  

  
2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch $2.85 2.95).  

  
3. Students pay for dinner (i.e., current cost of dinner $3.10 3.15)  

  
H. Non-Specialized Attire  

  
1. PE:  Students provide tennis shoes.  

  
2. Art:  Students provide a paint shirt.  

49



  
I. Musical Instruments (Optional Courses, Non-Extracurricular) *  

  
1. Band & Strings:  Students provide their own instruments.  

  
*The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free or reduced-price lunches.  
  

II. Middle School Fees:  
  

A. Extracurricular Activities*  
  

1. Montessori Immersion Experiences: Students pay up to a total of $ 500 (but not to exceed actual cost) for up to 
four trips.  

  
2. School will not fund competition beyond the state level.  

  
3. Sixth Grade Outdoor Education: Students pay up to $50.  

  
4. All Clubs: Students pay $0 to $140 (not to exceed the cost of conducting club activities) for membership and     

activities in each club.  
  

5. Athletics:  Students pay a $50 participation fee for football. Students pay a $40 participation fee for       
interscholastic sports. Students pay a $25 participation fee for each intramural sport.  

  
6. All Sports: Students provide elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, socks, shoes and cold weather attire as needed.  

  
7. Football:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

  
8. Volleyball:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

  
9. Basketball:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

  
10. Wrestling:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.   

  
11. Track:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

  
12. Other Requirements: Students who participate in athletics and/or the Cross Country Club are required to have a 

sports physical (except for intramural basketball/volleyball) and must be covered by health insurance.  Health 
insurance is available through private carriers, or, for those who qualify, the State of Nebraska.  

  
B. Spectator Admission/Transportation  

  
1. Students pay an admission fee to activities, not to exceed $10 per person per event.  The site administrator shall 

determine the admission charges to each “home” middle school event.  
  

C. Special Transportation  
  

1. §79-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  
  

2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  
  

3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): Transportation for students whose residences 
are two miles or more from school is provided through Student Transportation of America at $1.50 per trip 
(with the balance of the cost paid by the District).  

  
D. Copies of Files/Records  

    
1. Students pay 10 cents per page.  

  
E. Before/After School  

50



  
1. Mini-Classes:  Students pay up to $40 per class, including materials (6-8 sessions, but not to exceed actual cost).  

  
F. Lost/Damaged Property  

  
1. Students pay for repair or replacement of property.  

  
G. Summer/Night School*  

  
1. District Summer School:  Students pay up to $155 (for no more than 3 instructional hours per day for 12 days – 

one course); $400 (for no more than 6 instructional hours per day for 12 days – one course); $134 for mini-
courses (no more than 3 instructional hours per day for 4 days for each mini-course.)  

  
2. Middle School After-School Program:  Students pay up to $30 (for up to one hour per day for one week); up to 

$60 (for 2 to 3 hours per day for one week).  
  

3. Summer Opportunities instruction for students – no more than $150 (per opportunity per student).  
  

4. Transition Programs:  $10. 
  

H. Breakfast/Lunch Programs*  
  

1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.70).  
  

2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch $3.05 3.15).  A la carte selections vary in price.  
  

3. Students pay for dinner (i.e., current cost of dinner $3.05 3.15).  
  

I. Non-Specialized Attire  
  

1. PE:  Students provide athletic shoes, elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, and cold weather attire as needed.  
  

J. Musical Instruments (Optional, Non-Extracurricular) *  
  

1. Band & Strings: Students provide their own instruments.  
  

K. Music Items (Extracurricular)*  
    

1. Swing Choir & Jazz Band:  Students provide their own instruments and attire.  Required performance attire will 
not exceed a cost of $125.  

  
*   The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free or reduced-price lunches.  

  
III. High School Fees  
  

A. Extracurricular Activities*  
  

1. All Clubs:  Students pay up to $800 (not to exceed the cost of conducting club activities) for membership and     
activities in each club.  

  
2. All Activities:  Students pay a $65 fee for participation in athletics and activities governed by the Nebraska 

School Activities Association (fee includes an Athletic Admission Ticket for “home” school events). 
(Journalism, Concert Choir, and Orchestra are excluded.)  

  
3. Curriculum Related Activities (i.e., Marching Band, DECA, SkillsUSA, HOSA, FCCLA, Debate, Forensics, 

and FCS):  The District does not fund competitive activities for students beyond the state level.  After approval 
from principal or designee, fundraising and/or donations must cover the cost of competition beyond the state 
level.  

 
4. Graduation Materials:  Students purchase selected cap and gown.  

51



  
5. Drama Club:  Students pay $25 for supplies, materials, and services.  

  
6. Athletics, Cheerleading and Dance:  Students are required to have a physical and must be covered by health 

insurance to participate.  (Health insurance is available through private carriers, or, for those who qualify, the 
State of Nebraska.)  

  
7. All Athletics:  Students provide elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, socks, shoes, towels and cold weather attire as 

needed.  
  

8. Football:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes and practice jersey.  
  

9. Volleyball:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes and knee pads for use indoors only.  
  

10. Basketball:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only and practice jersey.  
  

11. Cross Country:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  
  

12. Tennis:  Students provide tennis racquet and appropriate athletic shoes and pay indoor court fees up to $30 per 
season.  

  
13. Golf:  Students provide golf clubs, golf bag, golf balls, and appropriate athletic shoes and pay range or green 

fees up to $30 per season.  
  

14. Softball:  Students provide softball glove, bat appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks.  
  

15. Baseball:  Students provide baseball glove, bat, appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks and pay indoor 
facilities fees up to $30 per season.  

  
16. Soccer:  Students provide shin guards, appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks and pay indoor facilities 

fees up to $30 per season.  
  

17. Wrestling:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  
  

18. Swimming:  Students provide swimsuits, towels, goggles and fins.  
  

19. Track:  Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  
  

20. Dance Team/Cheerleading/Show Choir:  Students purchase selected uniforms and pay fees to a summer camp.  
  

21. Intramurals:  Students pay intramural fees, not to exceed $25 (per intramural activity, per person), for intramural 
participation.  The site administrator shall determine the fee for each intramural activity.  

 
22. Unified Sports: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes. 

 
23. Bowling:  Students will provide a bowling ball, bowling shoes, and pay for bowling alley fees up to $30 per 

season. 
  

B. Spectator Admission/Transportation  
  

1. Students pay admission fees, not to exceed $30 (per event, per person), to school activities. The site       
administrator shall determine the admission charges to each “home” high school event.  

  
2. Athletic Admission Ticket:  Students pay $40 for admission to all “home” high school athletic events (non-     

tournament competitions).  
  

C. Post-Secondary Education  
  

1. Post-Secondary Education costs:  Students pay the cost of tuition and other fees only associated with obtaining 
credits from a post-secondary educational institution if the student chooses to apply for post-secondary 

52



education credit (i.e., $38 per credit for courses that require a Metropolitan Community college (MCC) 
instructor, $50 per Early College course through MCC, $250 per course at University of Nebraska–Omaha 
(UNO). University of Nebraska High School $200 per five credit course and $50 administrative fee per course 
(online classes).  

  
2. Advanced Placement Exams Fees:  Students may pay the cost of each exam (i.e., currently $94 $95 per exam) 

pending other available resources.  
  

3. International Baccalaureate Exams Fees:  Students may pay for the cost of exams (i.e., currently approximately   
$850 for two years of testing).  Students pay IB Registration Fees (currently $160) pending other available 
resources.  

  
D. Special Transportation  

  
1. §79-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  

  
2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  

  
3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): n/a   

  
E. Copies of Files/Records  

  
1. Transcript fee:  Students pay $5.  

  
2. Other Requests:  Students pay 10 cents per page.  

  
F. Lost/Damaged Property 

1. Students pay for cost of repair or replacement of property.  
  

G. Before/After School  
1. Mini-Classes:  Students pay up to $40 per class, including materials (6-8 sessions, but not to exceed actual cost).  

  
H. Summer/Night School*  

  
1. District Summer School:  Students pay up to $175 (for 3 instructional hours per day for 24 days, 1 one-semester 

course); $350 (for 6 instructional hours per day for 24 days, 2 one-semester courses); $140 (for up to 3 
instructional hours per day for 14 days, noncredit or special program course); $155 (for up to 3 instructional 
hours per day for 15 days, noncredit step-up to high school course).  

  
2. Summer Opportunities instruction for students - no more than $40 (per opportunity per student).  

  
3. Night School:  Students may pay up to $170 for 5 credit semester offering for credit recovery courses only.  

 
I. Breakfast/Lunch Programs*  

  
1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.95).  

  
2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch $3.55 3.65).  A la carte selections vary in price.  

  
3. Students pay for dinner (i.e., current cost of dinner $3.05 3.15).  

  
J. Parking Permit  

  
1. Students wishing to park in school lots during the school day must obtain a parking permit for $40.  

  
2. Students who accrue parking lot violations during the school day may be charged up to $10 per violation.  

 
K. Non-Specialized Attire  

  

53



1. PE:  Students provide athletic shoes, socks, swimsuit, towel, elastic-waist shorts, t-shirt, and cold weather attire 
as needed.  

  
2. Lifeguarding:  Students provide a CPR mouth guard.  

  
L. Musical Instruments (Optional, Non-Extracurricular) *  

  
1. Band and Strings:  Students provide their own instruments including drum sticks and mallets for percussion.  

  
M. Music Items (Extracurricular)*  

  
1. Pep Band:  Students provide a colored polo shirt (general description by band instructor).  

  
2. Band:  Students may provide black or white leather shoes as generally described by band instructor.  

  
N. Air Force Junior Reserve Officer Training  

1. Students will purchase additions to their uniform (cords, ribbon holder, ribbons) not to exceed $40.00 per year.  
 

2. Students will pay a uniform cleaning fee not to exceed $135 $160 a year.  
  
*   The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free or reduced-price lunches  
  
  

IV. Student Fee Fund:  
  

A. The District shall establish a Student Fee Fund, which shall be a separate fund not funded by tax revenue.  
  

B. All money collected from students pursuant to §79-2,127(1) (related to extracurricular activities), §79-2,127(3) (related 
to post-secondary education costs), and §79-2,127(8) (related to summer school and night school) shall be deposited 
into the Student Fee Fund.  Money expended from such fund shall be for the purposes for which it was collected from 
students.  

  
 *  The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free or reduced-price lunches.  
  
V. Waiver of Fees and/or Requirements:  
  

A. Students who qualify for free or reduced-price lunches under the USDA child nutrition programs may have fees and 
requirements waived for the following:  

  
1. §79-2,133 Related to participation in extracurricular activities.  

  
2. §79-2,131 Related to optional music courses and extracurricular music activities.  

  
B. Participating in a free or reduced-price lunch program shall not be required for students to qualify for a waiver of fees 

and/or requirements.  
  

C. Any qualified student desiring a waiver of fees and/or requirements shall complete and submit a Request for Waiver of  
Fees and/or Requirements form to the building principal (or his/her designee).  Once the Request is processed, the 
principal (or his/her designee) shall inform the student as to whether the Request was approved or denied.  

  
Legal References: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2,125 et seq.  
  
Related Policies & Rules: 6750  
  
Rule Approved: July 15, 2002  Millard Public Schools  
Revised: April 21, 2003; July 21, 2003; May 17, 2004; June 6, 2005;  Omaha, Nebraska  

April 17, 2006; April 23, 2007; April 21, 2008; April 13, 2009; November 2, 2009; February 15, 2010;   
April 5, 2010; September 7, 2010; March 21, 2011; July 11, 2011; May 7, 2012; May 20, 2013;  
July 1, 2013; May 5, 2014; May 4, 2015, May 2, 2016; May 1, 2017; May 7, 2018; May 6, 2019, 
May 4, 2020, May 3 2021  

54



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item:  Reaffirm Policy 6800: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access 
 
 
Meeting Date:   May 3, 2021  
 
 
Background/ 

 Description:  This policy is due for annual review. 
 
 
Action Desired: Reaffirm Policy 6800: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access 
 
 
Policy/Strategic Plan 
Reference:  N/A 
 
 
Responsible Person(s):  Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Anthony Weers, Andy DeFreece 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature: 

  

55



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

Parental Access 6800 

It is the policy of the Millard School District to inform parents of the educational practices affecting their children, 
and to foster and facilitate parental involvement in educational practices affecting their children 

This Policy shall be reviewed annually and either altered and adopted as altered, or reaffirmed by the Board, following 
a public hearing. 

Related Policies and Rules: 6800.1 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 79-530 through 79-533, 79-2, 104 

Policy Approved:  June 19, 1995 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  April 27, 1998; September 13, 1999 Omaha, Nebraska 
Reaffirmed:  July 1, 1996; July 7, 1997; August 7, 2000; June 17, 2002 
July 7, 2003; May 17, 2004; June 6, 2005; June 5, 2006; June 4, 2007; June 1, 2009 
June 7, 2010; June 6, 2011; June 4, 2012; June 3, 2013; May 19, 2014; May 18, 2015; May 2, 2016; May 1, 
2017; May 7, 2018; May 6, 2019, May 3, 2021 

56



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item:  Reaffirm Rule 6800.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access 
 
 
Meeting Date:   May 3, 2021  
 
 
Background/ 

 Description:  This Rule is due for annual review. 
 
 
Action Desired: Reaffirm Rule 6800.1: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment- Parental Access 
 
 
Policy/Strategic Plan 
Reference:  N/A 
 
 
Responsible Person(s):  Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Anthony Weers, Andy DeFreece 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature: 

  

57



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
Parental Access 6800.1 

 
 

I. Access to Educational Practices. Parents will be afforded the following access to the District's 
educational practices as required by law: 

 
A. Textbooks, tests, and curriculum materials: Parents may obtain access to textbooks, tests, and 

other curriculum materials used by the District by making a request to the Associate 
Superintendent of Educational Services or said Associate Superintendent's designee. Such request 
shall be reasonably specific in order that the District may comply with the request. 

 
1. Courses, assemblies, and other instructional activities: Parents may request to attend 

courses, assemblies, and other instructional activities by contacting the school principal 
or principal's designee reasonably in advance of the course, assembly, or instructional 
activity the parent desires to attend. The District will comply with such request if the 
request: 

 
a. Does not materially interfere with the educational process; and/or 

 
b. Is not contrary to the best interests of the student. 

 
If the parent's request is denied or qualified, the District will so notify the requesting 
parent, and will provide an explanation of the grounds for the denial or qualification. 

 
If the parents dispute the denial or qualification, the parents may submit a written request 
for review to the District's Associate Superintendent for Educational Services. Upon 
receipt of a written request for review, the Associate Superintendent for Educational 
Services will review all relevant documents and undertake such investigation as he/she 
determines to be appropriate. Thereafter, the Associate Superintendent for Educational 
Services will render a written disposition of the matter within ten (10) school days of 
his/her receipt of the written request for review. 

 
2. Counseling sessions: Parents may request to attend counseling sessions by submitting a 

written request to the Director of Student Services or said director's designee reasonably 
in advance of the counseling session the parent desires to attend. The District will comply 
with such request if the request: 

 
a. Does not materially interfere with the educational process; and/or 

 
b. Is not contrary to the best interests of the student. 

 
If the parent's request is denied or qualified, the District will so notify the requesting 
parent, and will provide an explanation of the grounds for the denial or qualification. 

 
If the parents dispute the denial or qualification, the parents may submit a written request 
for review to the District's Associate Superintendent for Human Resources. Upon receipt 
of a written request for review, the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources will 
review all relevant documents and undertake such investigation as he/she determines to be 
appropriate. Thereafter, the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources will render a 
written disposition of the matter within ten (10) school days of his/her receipt of the 
written request for review. 

58



B. Access to records: The District will permit access to student records pursuant to applicable law, 
District Policy 5710, and Rule 5710.1. Non-custodial parents will be permitted access to student 
records pursuant to applicable law, District Policy 5730, and Rule 5730.1. 

 
C. District testing policy: The District's administration and use of tests will be in accordance with 

established and recognized testing procedures for tests of scholastic, academic, and intellectual 
development and status. Testing pursuant to statutory requirements will be in compliance with 
recognized testing procedures and reasonable objectives. Drug, alcohol, and tobacco testing will 
be in compliance with District Policy and Rule. 

 
D. Surveys: 

 
1. District participation in surveys. The District will conduct all surveys of students 

required by law. The District will also participate in surveys of students conducted for 
educational purposes or which are reasonably related to the same. 

 
2. Protections of personal information and student privacy. No surveys shall be 

conducted which require the disclosure of personally identifiable information unless the 
survey is required by law, District Policy, or Board authorization.  Survey results shall 
not disclose personally identifiable information unless such disclosure is required by law, 
District Policy, or Board authorization. 

 
3. Notification and consent.  No student shall be required to submit to a survey, analysis, 

or evaluation that reveals information concerning political affiliations or beliefs of the 
student or the student's parent; mental or psychological problems of the student or the 
student's family; sex behavior or attitudes; illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or 
demeaning behavior; critical appraisals of other individuals with whom respondents have 
close family relationships; legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such 
as those of lawyers, physicians, and ministers; religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs 
of the student or student's parent; income (other than that required by law to determine 
eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such 
program); or which originates outside the District, without the prior written consent of the 
parent or without the prior consent of the student if the student is an adult or an 
emancipated minor. The District shall provide for reasonable notice of the adoption on 
continued use of this Rule directly to the parents of students enrolled in the District at 
least annually at the beginning of the school year and within a reasonable time after any 
substantive change in this Rule.  The District shall directly notify the parents of students 
at least annually at the beginning of the school year, of the specific or approximate dates 
during the school year when such surveys are scheduled or expected to be scheduled. 

 
4. Right to inspect surveys and to opt out.  The parents of district students have the right 

to inspect any survey before the survey is administered or distributed, including all 
instructional materials, teacher's manuals, films, tapes, and other supplementary materials 
which will be used in connection with any such survey. A parent shall be provided 
reasonable access to a survey within a reasonable period of time after a request to inspect 
is received. Parents, adult students, and emancipated students, may opt out of 
participation in any such survey by not providing the required prior consent or by 
revoking any previously provided consent. 

 
5. Personal information for marketing or sale. The District does not collect, disclose, or 

use personal information collected from students for the purpose of marketing or for 
selling that information or otherwise providing that information to others for that 
purpose. The District may engage in the collection, disclosure, or use of personal 
information collected from students for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, 
or providing educational products or services for, or to: 

59



a. Students; 
 

b. Educational institutions such as college or other post-secondary education 
recruitment, book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost 
literary products; 

 
c. Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools. 

 
d. Tests and assessments; 

 
e. The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or 

education-related activities, or student recognition programs. 
 

II. Annual Review. This Rule shall be reviewed annually and either altered and adopted as altered, or 
reaffirmed by the Board, following a public hearing. 

 
 
 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 79-530 through 79-533, 79-2, 104; 20 U.S.C. § 1232h 
 

Cross References: Rule 1310.2 (II) Complaints: Instructional Materials 
 Rule 5720.1 Records Retention and Disposition 

 Policy 5730 Parents' Access to School Records and School Contact 

 Rule 5730.1 Non-Custodial Parents' Access to School Records and School Contact 

 Policy 5710 Access to Student Records 

 Rule 5710.1 Student Records 

 Rule 5740.1 Visits to the Schools - Visitations by Parents, Guardians, and Others 

 Policy 6700 Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic 
Athletics and Activities (NSAA) 

 Rule 5530.1 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs and Exclusion from 
Participation 

 Rule 6810.2 Curriculum Request for Exclusion 

 Policy 6810 Public Access to School Materials and Documents 

 Rule 6810.1 Public Access to School Materials and Documents 

 Policy 6900 Research: Testing 

 Rule 6900.1 Research: Testing 
 

Related Policies and Rules: 6800 
 

Rule Approved:  June 19, 1995 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  April 27, 1998; September 13, 1999; July 7, 2003; May 17, 2004; June 6, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska 
Reaffirmed:  July 1, 1996; July 7, 1997; August 7, 2000; July 16, 2001; June 17, 2002; 
June 6, 2005; June 4, 2007; June 2, 2008; June 1, 2009; June 7, 2010; June 6, 2011; 
June 4, 2012; June 3, 2013; May 19, 2014; May 18, 2015; May 18, 2015; May 2, 2016; May 1, 2017; 
May 7, 2018; May 6, 2019, May 4, 2020, May 3, 2021 

60



 
 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of Construction Manager at Risk’s Guaranteed Maximum Price for 

Norris Elementary School Renovation 
 
Meeting Date: May 3, 2021 

 
Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows: 
Description: 

1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation 
 - “50 thousand feet view” – initial design and cost estimates 
2. Design Development (DD) 
  - “10 thousand feet view” – refined design and cost estimates 
3. Approval of Construction Manager at Risk’s Guaranteed Maximum Price  

* Board Meeting Presentation 
4. Contract Administration (CA) 
  - Supervision and documentation of the construction project. 
 

Norris Elementary School is one of the renovation projects budgeted in the 2020 
bond.   
 
The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $5,208,077.  
The Guaranteed Maximum Price proposed by the Construction Manager at Risk 
(Weitz) is $7,230,086.  This is $2,022,009 over budget.  This overage is more than 
offset by savings on previously awarded 2020 bond projects and by spending out 
the remainder of the 2013 bond funds, thereby freeing up 2020 bond funds.  Most 
of the amount over budget involves expansions to the west and north sides of the 
building as described in the architect’s report to facilitate education support. 
 
Under our more traditional approach, the architect would be coming to the Board 
to present a Bid Summary document showing the various lump sum bids of several 
contractors.  Under this CMR approach for Norris Elementary School, we already 
have our contractor identified (The Weitz Company).  The attached documents 
break out the costs that Weitz has developed.  These costs have been reviewed by 
the architect (Holland Basham).  The proposed guaranteed maximum price from 
Weitz is a “not-to-exceed number” for the agreed scope.  If there are future savings 
identified or if internal contingency is not used, any unused funds would be 
credited back to the District at the end of the project.   

 
Copies of the architect’s letter and supporting documents are attached.  A 
representative from Holland Basham Architects and a representative from the 
Weitz Company will be present to answer any questions. 

 
 
Action Desired: It is recommended that the Construction Manager at Risk’s Guaranteed 

Maximum Price for the Norris Elementary School Renovation of $7,230,086 
be approved and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any 
and all documents related to such project.    

 

61



Policy / 
Strategic Plan N/A 
Reference: 

 
Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 

 
Superintendent’s Signature:

62



 

April 23, 2021 

 

Mr. Chad Meisgeier 

Millard Public Schools 

Don Stroh Administration Center 

5606 South 147th Street 

Omaha, NE 68137 

 

RE: MPS Norris Elementary School Renovation and Additions  

 

Dear Mr. Meisgeier; 

 

Evaluation of the approved Norris Elementary Bond Scope of Work and existing building has been in progress with 

the MPS Staff and Holland Basham Architects since our approval as your Construction Manager on December 7, 

2020.  During this collaborative design session, additional building challenges were identified.  These were 

estimated as possible scope change items for enhancements to the school and provided for review.  The increases in 

scope include;  

 

Requirement for Small Mechanical Additions at the North & West Wing for new Equipment 

Expanded Additions to include needed Learning Breakout Space, Offices and Secured Egress Vestibules  

Upgraded Feature Entrance  

Demolition and New Restrooms at the Gym to Accommodate ADA Requirements 

Building Fire Sprinkler due to overage in Code Allowable Size 

Replacement of Storefront, shown to stay, to Increase Efficiency of the Building 

New Classroom Casework, in lieu of soffit, to cover mechanical lines 

Painting of complete Ceiling 

Carpet in lieu of VCT in Corridors 

Additional Sidewalks for Code Compliance 

New Larger Secondary Electrical Service to the Building for Heat Pump Loads 

New Storm Sewer Exterior Piping to Prevent Surface Freezing on Sidewalks 

 

The determination was made to proceed with the bidding of these items after the Schematic Budget.  It was 

estimated that the original budget of $5,208,077 would need to increase to $7,037,511 to incorporate the change in 

Scope.   

 

Upon receipt of bids, two factors were identified driving additional, unanticipated cost from the estimate.  Large 

increase in materials escalation pricing due to market shortages in materials from COVID closures and disasters in 

Texas.  This includes steel materials pricing contributing to additional cost for structural steel, steel fire sprinkler 

piping and metal stud materials.  Additionally, the labor required for the masonry façade was under-estimated.  Due 

to the gable configuration, the inefficiency of installation was higher than anticipated.     

 

63



Options for savings were explored and non-scope changing deducts were accepted for a total proposed GMP of 

$7,230,086.  Understanding these scope and cost increases, The Weitz Company recommends approval to proceed 

with the project as scheduled to start this summer.  This recommendation is based on concern that additional 

material escalations and annual labor rate increases will increase the overall cost.  The subsequent school, Cody, 

would experience a delay in start, contributing to an increased cost for Millard Public School.  Additionally, the 

current schedule allows the students and staff to recognize the early benefit from the upgraded learning environment. 

Please respond back with any questions or concerns.  We will provide supplementary information as requested. 

Upon your approval, the project will proceed forward immediately. 

Sincerely, 

Hilary Thien 

Project Manager 

cc: Brian Mahlendorf, General Manager 

e-copy: Owner Communication

64



65



 

H:\2020\20107 Millard Public Schools - Norris Elementary\ca\bid\20107-GMP letter-2021-04-23.docx 

April 23, 2021 

 

 

 

MR. Chad Meisgeier 

Millard Public Schools 

Don Stroh Administration Center 

5606 South 147th Street 

Omaha, NE 68137 

 

Subject: Millard Public Schools – Norris Elementary Renovation 

  HBA Project Number: 20107 

 

Dear Mr. Meisgeier, 

 

As you are aware, on December 7, 2020 the School Board approved the Weitz Company to act 

as Construction Manager at Risk (CMR) for the Norris Elementry School Renovation project.  

Since that time HBA and MPS Staff have been working together with Weitz to develop and 

document the specific project scope, detailed requirements, and projected construction 

timelines to bring this project forward.  During the design process, and on-going collaboration 

with Weitz, and the District, several design challenges were discovered.  These possible scope 

change item include: 

 

• Requirement for Small Mechanical Additions at the North & West Wing for new 

Equipment  

• Expanded Additions to include needed Learning Breakout Space, Offices and Secured 

Egress Vestibules   

• Upgraded Feature Entrance   

• Demolition and New Restrooms at the Gym to Accommodate ADA Requirements  

• Building Fire Sprinkler due to overage in Code Allowable Size  

• Replacement of Storefront, shown to stay, to Increase Efficiency of the Building  

• New Classroom Casework, in lieu of soffit, to cover mechanical lines  

• Painting of complete Ceiling  

• Carpet in lieu of VCT in Corridors  

• Additional Sidewalks for Code Compliance  

• New Larger Secondary Electrical Service to the Building for Heat Pump Loads  

• New Storm Sewer Exterior Piping to Prevent Surface Freezing on Sidewalks 

 

After a comprehensive analysis of the proposed work, HBA, Weitz and MPS Staff made the 

decision to proceed with the bidding of these additional scope items after the Schematic 

Budget.  After a comprehensive analysis of the proposed work, it was determined that the 

original budget of $5,208,077 would need to increase to $7,037,511 to incorporate the changes 

in scope. 

 

  

66



H:\2020\20107 Millard Public Schools - Norris Elementary\ca\bid\20107-GMP letter-2021-04-23.docx 

The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) process for Norris Elementry School has been very 

collaborative and HBA has been directly involved in reviewing the details of the Weitz proposal.  

Numerous cost savings options were explored by HBA, Weitz and MPS Staff to reduce over-all 

costs without changing the scope of the project.  Many of these options were accepted to 

bring us to the total GMP of $7,230,086. 

 

After careful review of the GMP, HBA recommends approval to proceed with the project as 

scheduled to start this summer. 

 

Upon your approval, we can proceed with moving the project forward.  Please let me know if 

you should have any questions or concerns. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Megan K. Jarosz, HBA Associate Partner  

mjarosz@hollandbasham.com 

 
MJ 

 

67



FILE LOCATION: PLOTTED: 4/23/2021 9:39:28 AMC:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY
Issue Date:4/23/21
Project Number: 20107 SITE PLAN

GEOTHERMAL 

WELL FIELD

N

NEW EGRESS
SIDEWALK

NEW ADDITION

NEW ADDITION

NEW EGRESS
SIDEWALKS

NEW MAIN ENTRY
VESTIBULE

68

NHitt
Snapshot

NHitt
Line

NHitt
Line

NHitt
Snapshot

NHitt
Callout
NEW SECURE MAIN ENTRY VESTIBULE

NHitt
Snapshot

NHitt
Polygon



PRIMARY
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

PRE-PRIMARY
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

PRE-PRIMARY
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

KINDERGARTEN
CLASSROOM

PRIMARY
MONTESSORI
3RD GRADE

CLASSROOM

PRIMARY
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

BREAKOUT

CORRIDOR

PPM
CLOSET

BREAKOUT
STORAGE

CORRIDOR

STORAGE

MECH

MECH

KINDERGARTEN
CLASSROOM

1ST GRADE
CLASSROOM

1ST GRADE
CLASSROOM

3RD GRADE
CLASSROOM

3RD GRADE
CLASSROOM

2ND GRADE
CLASSROOM

STORAGE BREAKOUT BREAKOUT

CORRIDOR

IDFBREAKOUT

MAIN
OFFICE

HEALTH

TOILET

PRINCIPAL
CONFERENCE/

ADMIN
INTERN
OFFICE

STAFF
LOUNGE

PRESCHOOL
BOILER
ROOM

KITCHEN

STORAGE/
KIDSNET
OFFICE

STORAGE

GYM/CAFETERIA

BAND

MEDIA
OFFICE

CUSTODIAN

PE
STORAGE

2ND GRADE
CLASSROOM

LIBRARY

MUSIC

RESOURCE
ROOM

STOR.

BREAKOUT

IM
CLOSETINTERMEDIATE

MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

5TH GRADE
CLASSROOM

5TH GRADE
CLASSROOM

INTERMEDIATE
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

4TH GRADE
CLASSROOM

4TH GRADE
CLASSROOM

BREAKOUT

5TH
CLOSET

STORAGE

WORKROOM

STORAGE

NEW SECURE 

MAIN ENTRY

VEST.

MECHANICAL

MENS
RESTROOM

2ND.
CLOSET

CUB DEN/
PEACE
ROOM

CORRIDOR

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

PM CLOSET STORAGE STORAGE

1ST
CLOSET

BREAKOUT BREAKOUT

BREAKOUTBREAKOUT

MECH

OFFICE

OFFICE

CORRIDOR

OFFICE STOR.

STORAGE

MECHANICAL

VEST.

OFFICE

OFFICE

STOR.

CORRIDOR

ELL OFFICE
VEST.

STOR.

BREAKOUT

BREAKOUT

BREAKOUT

BREAKOUT

VEST.

CORRIDOR

P.E. OFFICE OFFICE MECH OFFICE OFFICE

MECH

VEST.

WOMENS
RESTROOM

SERVER
ROOM

NEW ADDITION

NEW ADDITION

3

3

AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'
A

R
E

A
 '
A

'

A
R

E
A

 '
B

'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

NEW WALL AT REMOVED 

OPERABLE PARTITION

3

4

NEW 12"X24" PORCELAIN TILE

SEALED CONCRETE

EXISTING TERRAZZO

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

NEW INTERIOR / EXTERIOR WALL

EXISTING WALL

NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING

NEW ACOUSTICAL WALL PANELS

NEW WOOD DOOR/PAINT EXISTING FRAME

NEW HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME

FINISH LEGEND

NEW HOLLOW METAL DOOR/PAINT EXISTING FRAME

NEW ALUMINUM WINDOW

NEW 24"X24" CARPET TILE

NEW 12"X12" VCT

NEW CASEWORK

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP/SINK

NEW ALUMINUM DOOR

AREA C

AREA A
AREA B

KEY PLAN

N

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS

NEW MARKERBOARD

NEW SOLID SURFACE WALL CAP

FILE LOCATION: PLOTTED: 4/23/2021 4:37:52 PMC:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY
Issue Date:4/23/21
Project Number: 20107 OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

69



A
R

E
A

 '
A

'

A
R

E
A

 '
B

'
AREA 'A'

AREA 'B'NEW ADDITION

EXISTING ROOF OVERHANG

EXISTING ROOF OVERHANG EXISTING ROOF OVERHANG

EXISTING ROOF OVERHANG

METAL PANEL SOFFIT

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

AREA 'B'

AREA 'C'

NEW ACOUSTICAL CEILING PANEL

FINISH LEGEND

NEW 2x2 ACOUSTICAL CEILING TILE AND GRID

NEW GYPSUM BOARD CEILING/SOFFIT

PAINT EXPOSED DECK THROUGHOUT ROOM & AT 
EXTERIOR EXISTING ROOF OVERHANG

PAINT EXISTING GYPSUM BOARD SOFFIT

AREA C

AREA A
AREA B

KEY PLAN

N

FILE LOCATION: PLOTTED: 4/23/2021 3:02:35 PMC:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY
Issue Date:04/23/21
Project Number: 20107 OVERALL REFLECTED CEILING PLAN

70



NEW SECURED MAIN ENTRY
NEW ADDITION EXISTING NEW BRICK EXISTING BRICK

NEW BRICK INFILL AT
REMOVED WINDOW

(3) 1/2" BRICK REVEALS

SOLIDER COURSE WITH /1/2" STEP OUT

CAST STONE SILL

ALUMINUM DOWNSPOUT

NEW ADDITION EXISTING

SOLIDER COURSE 
WITH 1/2" STEP OUT

(3) 1/2" BRICK REVEALS

SOLIDER COURSE 
WITH 1/2" STEP OUT

(3) 1/2" BRICK REVEALS

CAST STONE SILL

FILE LOCATION: PLOTTED: 4/23/2021 4:09:41 PMC:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY
Issue Date:4/23/21
Project Number: 20107 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

OVERALL SOUTH ELEVATION FACING WEIR STREET 

WEST ELEVATION @ ADDITION - AREA 'A'

EAST & WEST ELEVATIONS @ AREA 'C'

NORTH ELEVATION @ ADDITION @ AREA 'C'

71



FILE LOCATION: PLOTTED: 4/23/2021 4:16:59 PMC:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY
Issue Date:4/23/21
Project Number: 20107 TYP. ENLARGED ELEVATION @ CLASSROOMS

TYP. ENLARGED CLASSROOM BAY 

(3) 1/2" BRICK REVEALS

DOWNSPOUT

CAST STONE SILL

(2) STEPPED RUNNING BOND 
COURSES W/ 1/2" STEP OUT

SOLIDER COURSE W/1/2" STEP OUT 
ABOVE ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

NEW DARK BRONZE 
COPING TO MATCH
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

DARK BRONZE ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

72



73

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image



74

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image



75

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image

NHitt
Image



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date: 

Background:  

Description:  

Action Desired:  

Policy /  

Strategic Plan Reference: 

Responsible Person(s):  

Human Resources 

May 3, 2021

Personnel Items: (1) Recommendation to Hire; (2) Resignation Agenda

Approval 

N/A 

Dr. Kevin Chick 
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources

Superintendent’s Signature:  

76



May 3, 2021 
 
 

 TEACHER RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 
 
 
Recommend: The following teachers be hired for the 2021-2022 school year: 
 

1. Kelly L. Hayhurst – BA – Peru State College. Grade 1 teacher at Ezra Elementary 
school for the 2021-2022 school year.  Previous Experience: Louisiana Public 
School District (2015-present) 

2. Allison M. Devries – BA – Wesleyan University.  Grade 3 teacher at Holling 
Heights Elementary School for the 2021-2022 school year. 

3. Kelsey J. Gansebom – MA—University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Speech Language 
Pathologist for Millard Public Schools for the 2021-2022 school year. 

4. Kelly A. Straatmann – MA – University of Nebraska, Lincoln.  Kindergarten CORE 
teacher at Cather Elementary School for the 2021-2022 school year.  Previous 
Experience: Council Bluffs Public Schools (2012-present) 

5. Andrew L. Lerette – BA+9 – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Physical Education 
teacher at Morton Elementary School for the 2021-2022 school year. 

6. Kristen M. Schlais – MA – Olivet Nazerene University. Grade 2 teacher at Cody 
Elementary School for the 2021-2022 school year. Previous Experience: 
Washington Public School District (2018-present); Fremont Public School District 
(2014-2018); McCook Public School District (2013-2014) 

7. John F. Thome – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 4 teacher at Sandoz 
Elementary School.  

8. Rachael M. Nordhues – BA – University of Nebraska, Kearney. Physical Education 
teacher at Millard West High School for the 2021-2022 school year. 

9. Anne K. Christensen – BA+27 – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Teacher 
Librarian at Beadle Middle School for the 2021-2022 school year.  Previous 
Experience: Columbus Public Schools (2018-present) 
 

 
 

 

77



 
  May 3, 2021 

 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 

Recommend: The following resignation(s) be accepted: 

 
 

1. Carissa N. Nietfeldt – Special Education Resource teacher at Sandoz Elementary School. 
Resigning at the end of the 2020-2021 school year to take a teaching position with Gretna 
Public Schools. 

2. Tina A. Preuss – Math teacher at Central Middle School. Resigning at the end of the 2020-
2021 school year to take a teaching position with Christ the King parochial school. 

3. Lisa G. Kiemde – Math teacher at Millard West High School. Resigning at the end of the 
2020-2021 school year for personal reasons. 

4. Telma B. Cruz – World Language teacher at Millard North Middle School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2020-2021 school year because of family relocation. 

5. Elizabeth J. Tjeerdsma – EL teacher at Montclair Elementary School. Resigning at the end of 
the 2020-2021 school year because of family relocation. 

6. Susan E. Goldsberry – Special Education Preschool teacher at Cody Elementary School. 
Retiring at the end of the 2020-2021 school year. 

7. Crista J. Jensen – Art teacher at Abbott Elementary School. Resigning at the end of the 2020-
2021 school year to return to school to further her education. 

8. Rose M. Bernstein – Family and Consumer Science teacher at Keith Lutz Horizon High 
School. Retiring at the end of the 2020-2021 school year. 

9. Lauren E. Rottinghaus – Speech Pathologist at Harvey Oaks Elementary School.  Resigning 
at the end of the 2020-2021 for personal family reasons. 

10. Aingeal E. Jones – Credit Recovery teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2020-2021 year because of personal family reasons. 

11. Christina K. Mendez – Spanish teacher at Kiewit Middle School. Resigning at the end of the 
2020-2021 school year because of family relocation. 

12. Kimberly A. Hirschman – Special Education Resource teacher at Kiewit Middle School. 
Resigning at the end of the 2020-2021 school year to take a position with Papillion La Vista 
Community Schools. 

13. Crystal A. Cizek – Grade 4 teacher at Ezra Elementary School. Resigning at the end of the 
2020-2021 school year for personal reasons. 

14. Brian Cleary – Alternate Curriculum Special Education teacher at Beadle Middle School.  
Resigning at the end of the 2020-2021 school year to take a teaching position with Norfolk 
Public Schools. 

15. Jessica Zavadil-Manley – Resource teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2020-2021 school year to take a teaching positon with Gretna Public Schools. 

78



16. Heather M. Clements – Part Time HAL teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. Resigning at 
the end of the 2020-2021 school year to take a teaching positon with Humboldt-Table Rock 
School District. 

17. Matthew D. Wallace – Physical Education teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. Resigning 
at the end of the 2020-2021 school year for employment outside of education. 

18. Molly B. Erickson – HAL Facilitator at Russell Middle School. Resigning at the end of the 
2020-2021 school year to take a position with Elkhorn Public School District. 

19. Kendra K. Bubb – Spanish teacher at Millard South High School.  Resigning at the end of the 
2020-2021 school year to teach with the Peace Corps abroad. 

 
 

 

79



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Legislative Report

Meeting Date: May 3, 2021

Background/
Description: This report provides a general update on legislative actions including bills that

have been identified to have potential impact on Millard Public Schools.

Action Desired: Informational

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Nolan Beyer, Executive Director Activities, Athletics & External Affairs

Superintendent’s Signature:

80



Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB2 Briese Revenue 2/2/2021 Briese priority bill, Placed on 
General File with AM638

Change the valuation of agricultural land 
and horticultural land for certain school 
district taxes
(amends property tax valuation to provide 
that for purposes of school district taxes 
levied to pay bonds agriculture and 
horticultural land be valuated at 30% of 
actual vlaue. 

Oppose Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB3 Briese Education 2/2/2021 Change notice requirements for school 
district budget hearings and require 
access to school district data (requires 
NDE to establish a website that allows 
public access districts revenue and 
spending information)

Neutral Neutral Monitor

LB5 Blood Education 2/23/2021 Placed on General File, 
Placed on Select File,. Plae 
on Final Reading,  Passed 
on Final Reading 46-0-3

 

Adopt the Purple Star Schools Act Support Support

LB17 Kolterman Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

1/27/2021 Nebraska Retirement 
Systems priority bill, Placed 
on General File with AM461

Change actuarial valuation and 
amortization provisions for certain state 
retirement systems

Neutral

LB36 Erdman Education 3/2/2021 Require display of the national motto in 
schools (requires districts to prominently 
display the nation motto, "in God We 
Trust" in each classroom or in another 
prominent place where each school will 
see it each day school is in session.  
Requires Attorney General to intervene 
on behalf of districts) 

Oppose Oppose

LB54 Lathrop Judiciary 2/18/2021 Lathrop priority bill Change immunity for intentional torts 
under the Political Subdivisions Tort 
Claims Act and the State Tort Claims Act 
(removes 5 million dollar cap on liability in 
some situations)

Oppose Oppose

LB62 Kolterman Education 3/2/2021 Create the Access College Early 
Scholarship Cash Fund and change 
provisions relating to the Nebraska 
Education Improvement Fund, Nebraska 
Opportunity Grant Fund, and Community 
College Gap Assistance Program Fund

Support

81

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MD1hNDw3MWBjMTM8YDc9NT1gN2cyMjxgZzI1MDE8MWAzPDwwZj00NiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB2.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NmFnMDw2Zjw3PT1jZmQ2YzY1MWNkMmMzMzQ3NGQwZjA8N2BkZzxnMCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB3.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PDNkMTZkMDY0NTRhNWAwYzBmZjM0MDxhMmYzZDU2M2FmNzNmMWA8ZCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB5.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDQ2Z2RjYDw9YWQwN2RkY2Q9MGAzZjNhYzY9N2Q0Z2AyYGQ2YGcxNCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB36.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4YTxhYzVnZzI0N2dkMjFnNjAzNWNmZz02NmdgYGM1YDMyYTw2PGdhNyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB54.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PGc2MmRjM2M0NWFnZDFhPWQ8MGQ2ZjYzNWc9NTI9Yz1jM2Q3NzE2NSNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB62.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB65 Williams Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

2/10/2021 Placed on General File, 
Placed on Select File,  
Placed on Final Reading, 
Passed on Final Reading 
48-0-1

Change contractual conflict of interest 
provisions under the Nebraska Political 
Accountability and Disclosure Act (clean 
up language)

Neutral

LB67 Day Health and Human 
Services

2/18/2021 Change provisions relating to school-
based health centers under the Medical 
Assistance Act

Monitor Monitor

LB71 Wayne Judiciary 2/18/2021 Change provisions relating to intentional 
tort claims under the Political 
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act and State 
Tort Claims Act

Oppose Oppose

LB79 Briese Revenue 2/10/2021 Change the minimum amount of relief 
provided under the Property Tax Credit 
Act

Monitor

LB83 Flood Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/27/2021 Government, Military and 
Veterans Affairs priority bill, 
Government, Military and 
Veterans Affairs AM127 
adopted, Placed on Final 
Reading with ST7

Change the Open Meetings Act to 
provide for virtual conferencing (enable to 
boards to meet virtually.  Require 
agendas and minutes of board meetings 
to be posted for six months after a 
meeting)  

Support Support

LB87 Morfeld Education 3/2/2021 Provide for mental health first aid training 
for school districts and change provisions 
relating to the use of lottery funds

Support

LB88 Morfeld Judiciary 1/29/2021 Placed on General File
Morfeld priority bill

Protect free speech rights of student 
journalists and student media advisers

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB112 Albrecht Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/27/2021 Require members of the public to be 
allowed to speak at each meeting subject 
to the Open Meetings Act
(require the ability for public comment at 
all board meetings) 

Monitor Oppose

LB117 Cavanaugh, M. Education 2/2/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM421

Adopt the Hunger-Free Schools Act Monitor

LB132 DeBoer Education 2/2/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM555, Legislature's 
Planning Committee priority 
bill

Create the School Financing Review 
Commission

Support Support Support Support

LB133 Erdman Revenue 2/3/2021 Adopt the Nebraska EPIC Consumption 
Tax Act and eliminate certain other taxes 
(completely reworks the taxation 
methods)

Oppose

LB135 Wishart Education 2/25/2021  Placed on General File Change special education 
reimbursements

Monitor Support Support Support

LB136 Vargas Education 2/9/2021 Placed on General File Change procedures regarding short-term 
suspension of students

Oppose Monitor

82

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDA1YWAyZz1gPDVhNT1mYTMwZmY9NWQ9YTYwNzUyMjRmPWM9Z2A3YyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB65.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PDBjZGY9ZzZmZ2AwYD1mZjA8M2Y9ZzU1NWA2ZzE3NTI9NGQyM2ZjZiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB67.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4YTxjNzUxZmZnMDQxPGc8MjcxPDc0PTUwYzEyNGBnZjwyPDA9NzYxMiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB71.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MzVhPGc1NTAxYTYyNDA9ZmRkNzU9NmY0ZGBgPDMxZD03ZzU0YDcwZiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB79.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Mj08ZmYwMTI0YDM3NTdhZmEwNGRjN2BgYzM9ZmQ3Mz03PDEzZDwwMiNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB83.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Mjw8Z2FgNTJnZDQ3PGRkMzdgZmE3NWQ9YzBjNTUxYTA1PDc2ZDJkMSNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB87.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4Yz1nMDJnZDc1MGZmNDRgPWBkY2MxZmYzYWE0YDdhYzI9NjUyZjc8ZCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB88.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4ZjFgPDdgYzIzNGdgNGZhZjUwMTY9MjMzPDE3YGRjMmBkPWM3ZjAyYCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB112.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MzFjPDNmPDNkNzY3MjxkMTFnPTA8Mzc9Y2QyPDNkZGdmYGNmMzxkMCNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB117.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDIxZzY0Nj1kZDBnNDczPD1hNjAwPDBgYWBnZzc3ZzYyYGE0MDE2YyNxODQzNDU0MTQzNTwjdGxhODQ1PUldUUk3NTU3MjcwKDQ1PUldUUkxNTU3MjcwI3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB132.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8MDg3NmdkMmdlZzQ4ODgzOWA2ZDUwMmI3YjNgY2U2MGRjZDVlZDdgYid1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB133.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB136.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB143 Kolterman Health and Human 
Services

2/3/2021  Placed on General File with 
AM105, Speaker priority bill, 
Placed on Select File, 
Placed on Final Reading

Require notice to school districts 
regarding changes in child placement

Support Support

LB146 Kolterman Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

2/23/2021 Define and redefine terms relating to 
school retirement provisions

Support Support

LB147 Koltreman Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

2/23/2021 Placed on General FIle
Change provisions relating to retirement 
systems for Class V school districts

Support

LB153 Wayne Education 2/25/2021 Include virtual school students in the 
state aid to schools formula (TEEOSA 
would be amended include students who 
are virtual learners, and those who are 
virtual learners not enrolled on a full-time 
basis) 

Monitor Neutral Monitor Monitor

LB154 Wayne Education 2/9/2021 Placed on General File, 
Speaker priority bill, Placed 
on Selcet File, Placed on 
Final Reading

Require tracking of student discipline as 
prescribed (require State Board of 
Education to implement a system tracking 
student discipline, including the type of 
discipline and demographic information of 
students) 

Monitor Monitor

LB198 Vargas Education 2/26/2021  Placed on General File with 
AM645

Change provisions relating to the Student 
Discipline Act

Oppose Monitor Oppose

LB200 Vargas Education 3/1/2021 Placed on General File Provide a high school graduation 
requirement relating to federal student aid 
(require all students to complete Free 
Application for Federal tudent Aid prior to 
graduating) 

Monitor Oppose Monitor

LB209 McDonnell Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems

3/3/2021  Placed on General File with 
AM880

Change provisions relating to treatment 
of deferred compensation by certain 
political subdivisions, state agencies, and 
the Public Employees Retirement Board

Neutral

LB210 Murman Education 2/25/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM357

Change provisions relating to part-time 
enrollment in public schools and 
extracurricular activities (School boards 
would be required to establish policies 
allowing students who attend home 
school or non-accredited schools to 
participate in extracurricular activities at 
public schools) 

Oppose Oppose

LB212 Cavanaugh, M. Executive Board 2/25/2021 Prohibit charging members of the 
Legislature fees for public record 
requests

Monitor

LB281 Albrecht Education 2/23/2021 Albrecht priority bill, Placed 
on General File with AM298

Require child sexual abuse prevention 
instructional programs for school students 
and staff

Oppose

LB282 Albrecht Judiciary 2/26/2021 Change provisions relating to obscenity Neutral Monitor

83

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8Yjc4NGVkMzYzNWVjNTI5ODgzMWAyOTRjZDlgYDFnYzBiNWQzOGQ0MSd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB143.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB146.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/bills/view_bill.php?DocumentID=43795
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8MmdiZDQyYmU0NWQwYzU4NDA2Y2NnNDA0MWNkNGJlODVnYjllZDEyZCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB153.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8YmNgZTExNzM3YmczMjIxZzQ0NGJjMzNiMTM3Z2RiZDJlNGAwOTJjMCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB154.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NTQ3MWJiMmRjZzc3ODY1YzJlYzY1NmMyYzFjYjZiZWQ1ODYxMmNjNCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB198.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8ZzQ4MjUwMzliZGAxNDNjNjAwNTNiYDRgMjI3ZTVjY2MzMTYyZTkyYCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB200.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NDQxMjAwMDBjYGA2ZzU2MGBkZ2I4YzUwOTliZTNiMzI3NDQ1YjZnOCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB209.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8NmMwNGAyNWQ1MDJlN2Q4NDlgZzMwZ2cxNWIxMGc2ZzZlNDVjYDA5Zyd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB210.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8M2UwYDllMWIxNjJkYDgxYjY1ZGU3M2c4MDMzYDhgMDlnZDRlNDdgMCd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB212.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NjQ0YTA3YjdgYGIwNjQ8MmViYTcwMmYwZzNnZTc1YjU0NWc8YmcyZiJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB281.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YDxmNTYzN2BgYjBnZTRnYmVlYTNiMmdlYDwxNWY1MD1hPWJiYmFlZiJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB282.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB286 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Redefine a term relating to schools (adds 
k-8 definition for elementary)

Neutral Monitor

LB287 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Change school finance base limitation 
and local effort rate provisions

Monitor Neutral Monitor

LB288 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Placed on General File,   
Placed on Select File

Change dates related to certification and 
distribution of state aid to schools

Neutral Neutral Monitor

LB289 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Redefine a term in the Tax Equity and 
Educational Opportunities Support Act 
(adds K-8 definition for elementary)

Neutral Monitor

LB322 Williams Education 2/9/2021 Williams priority bill,  Placed 
on General File with AM464,   
Placed on Final Reading

Adopt the School Safety and Security 
Reporting System Act

Support Monitor Support

LB323 Walz Education 2/25/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM41

Change provisions of the Tax Equity and 
Educational Opportunities Support Act 
relating to pandemics

Support Support Support

LB327 Slama Education 2/1/2021 Require a personal finance or financial 
literacy credit for high school graduation

Neutral Oppose

LB359 Pansing Brooks Education 2/16/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM400

Change provisions regarding multicultural 
education as prescribed and provide 
powers for the State Board of Education

Neutral Monitor

LB361 Dorn Appropriations 2/19/2021 State intent regarding appropriations to 
the State Department of Education

Support Support Support

LB362 Halloran Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

2/5/2021
Change provisions relating to ballots for 
early voting under the Election Act

LB364 Linehan Revenue 1/28/2021 Linehan priority bill Adopt the Opportunity Scholarships Act 
and provide tax credits

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB368 Sanders Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/29-21 Placed on General File with 
AM66,Placed on Selet File 
Placed on Final Reading, 
Approved by Governor on 
March 31, 2021

Provide the Auditor of Public Accounts 
enforcement powers for failure of political 
subdivisions to file reports

Monitor

LB369 Sanders Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs

1/29/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM67, Placed on Select 
File, Placed on Final 
Reading, Approved by 
Governor on March 31, 2021

Provide the Auditor of Public Accounts 
access to working papers and audit files

Monitor

LB378 DeBoer Education 3/1/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM246

Require the Commissioner of Education 
to report data as prescribed

Neutral Support

LB380 Hilgers Appropriations 2/5/2021  Placed on General File with 
AM393. Placed on Select 
FIle, Placed on Final 
Reading

 

Appropriate funds for the expenses of 
Nebraska State Government for the 
biennium ending June 30, 2023

Monitor

84

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5MjNlZzIwZjI8PT09ZzVmPWI1ZjVgNGdhMGc2NWY9ZTdmMDc8YD01PCJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB286.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDRmMzBiYGA1PDNnMDJgMTFmNTAxZT1nZmcyZzY3ZTJiYmU9MGE8YSJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB287.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5MjxmNjJlNTMzPDQyNmVhMzU3Z2U0PTZnMmczYGIxZ2YyNzI3MDxgMSJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB288.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5N2cyNjcwYTQ8NmE2ZjNiMTQyNDM9MjBlYTZiPTFmMDJhNmAxPT03NyJwOTUyNTQxMj09PDwidW1gOTU0QE9cPDxDNDQxMjA8KTU0QE9cPDxNNDQxMjA8InZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB289.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42bz5qOG5tPTo7Ozk5aTI+Pm47PW08bjltPjJpaD87bTxpOmk5Pjs+by1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB322.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42OD9vajgybTk4am5tbj85aG0+OTozbT8zPzxtPW07OGg6PWk6OjxuOi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB323.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVUzODo5My9/NDsnOS9gbTQ5ODM5OC96YG5naH18e2w0azE8bD1qOjwxb287Pm87a2w8ampsPzA+OD0xPG09bDg8P2s/MTtrai99NDg/ODs7Pj4/OzsveGBtNDg4O0x7bkNaOTg+Pjo5JDg4O0x7bkNcOTg+Pjo5L3tqeX00L2o0PDgvYW1lNDk=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fAM41.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVUzODo5My9/NDsnOS9gbTQ5ODM5OC96YG5naH18e2w0azE8bD1qOjwxb287Pm87a2w8ampsPzA+OD0xPG09bDg8P2s/MTtrai99NDg/ODs7Pj4/OzsveGBtNDg4O0x7bkNaOTg+Pjo5JDg4O0x7bkNcOTg+Pjo5L3tqeX00L2o0PDgvYW1lNDk=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fAM41.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PmpoP20zb2k/PDNqMzxtMmhqbz48OzszPTo6OT0zOzo9OjI4OzkzPi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB327.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42P2o+aDJtbzpuOm8/aj8+bWo6MmlpMjJpaD1vPm1qb286b2ptaW1tai1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB359.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42am5oODkyMzo/bj06bjMybzwzPTM8OTpvaGltPjg+Mm87bm1uOm08PS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB361.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/bills/view_bill.php?DocumentID=44046
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PG89Oj8/bT9oOjlubmo/OTM+MjozPjw8MzJuMjs5bWgzPWo4OzJtOi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB364.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42MzNuOjluaTptOThoOjo6Mzk+Pjo8Oj5oODoyPzs8aDw4Pmg5PmhvaS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB368.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42OzI8Pj9qOTM5aW5uOmo+aDhuOT88Pm9uaTM6Oz8yMm08aDlpbm4ybi1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB369.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42PW1oMjIzMm0+MjJvbzI/aW1pOzsybjk8bW8ybTxobm88Pm0+b2puPS1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB378.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB380.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB388 Friesen Transportation and 
Telecommunication
s

2/8/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM530
Hilgers priority bill

Adopt the Nebraska Broadband Bridge 
Act

Monitor Monitor

LB389 Sanders Education 2/8/2021 Sanders priority bill,  Placed 
on General File, Approved 
by Governor on March 31, 
2021

Require the issuance of teaching 
certificates and permits to military 
spouses

Support Monitor

LB396 Brandt Education 2/23/2021 Placed on General File, 
Speaker priority bill

Adopt the Nebraska Farm-to-School 
Program Act

Monitor

LB408 Briese Revenue 1/27/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM371, Geist priority bill

Adopt the Property Tax Request Act Oppose Oppose Oppose

LB417 Halloran Judiciary 3/3/2021 Authorize possession of a firearm on 
school grounds by a full-time, off-duty law 
enforcement officer

Oppose Oppose

LB422 Briese Revenue 2/3/2021 Change the sales tax rate and impose 
sales tax on additional services

LB436 Hansen, B. Health and Human 
Services

2/11/2021 Placed on General File Change provisions of the Athletic Training 
Practice Act

Monitor Monitor

LB452 McKinney Education 2/1/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM636, Speaker priority bill

Adopt the Financial Literacy Act Monitor Oppose

LB454 Friesen Revenue 2/11/2021  Friesen priority bill, Placed 
on General File with AM789

Adopt the School Property Tax 
Stabilization Act and change the 
valuation of agricultural land

Oppose Monitor

LB456 Friesen Transportation and 
Telecommunication
s

2/8/2021 Adopt the Nebraska Enhancing 
Broadband Act

Monitor

LB473 DeBoer Education 2/8/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM520

Adopt the Extraordinary Increase in 
Special Education Cost Act

Monitor Monitor Support Support

LB480 McKinney Business and 
Labor

3/1/2021 Change the minimum wage as 
prescribed. (incrementally increase by 
one dollr beginning in 2022 intil 2032 to 
$20

LB518 Morfeld Education 2/9/2021 Change provisions relating to long-term 
suspension, expulsion, or mandatory 
reassignment under the Student 
Discipline Act

Monitor Monitor

LB523 Albrecht Revenue 2/26/2021 Placed on General File Change provisions relating to certain 
school taxes and special funds

Oppose Oppose

LB528 Walz Education 2/2/2021 Education priority bill,  
Placed on General File with 
AM556

Change, eliminate, and add provisions 
relating to education

Monitor Monitor

LB529 Walz Education 2/2/2021  Education priority bill, 
Placed on General File with 
AM495

Change provisions for the distribution of 
lottery funds used for education, transfer 
powers and duties, create new acts and 
funds, and change education provisions

Support Support Support Support

85

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB388.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+OjYxNGIwMTIxZzE2YTUzMjsyO2YzNTBgNGE6YjM6NjM2N2c0MjoyOiV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB389.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+Nmc3YTczYmFhMTE7MzJhYGZmNDFgNjExZWZiNTFgOjIwZ2JiOzcxZSV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB396.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+ZzIyO2U2YDs0NDE0YDBhMTFiMDAwYjYxOzVnZTFlOzIyZTQxZjRmMyV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB408.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVs5MjAzOSV1PjEtMyVqZz4zMjkzMiVwamRtYnd2cWY+ZmdhZTowNDYyZ2Y2NTtnOzBhZmJhNzJiMjs6N2E7Nzs6YjBmZjI1MSV3PjI1MjM7Mjo3OjolcmpnPjIzREtzZ3ZVMzIxMzIxLjIzREtzZ3ZbMzIxMzIxJXFgc3c+JWA+NjIla2dvPjM=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB417.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB422.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4MjJkNjNhMjAxZj1jPWQ3NDY2PDRgMjYzZDcxPWMzNzU8ZGM8YDVhMSNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB436.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4ZjAyZ2Y2MmM1N2c9PDc2PTVmNmY3MjNkZ2cyPDwxZjw0PDc0YDNgNiNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB452.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4NDMxNTUzYTQ0MzQwYDxgYWYwYWZgMWc3YzZhNT1kMDYxMD08YGEwYyNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB454.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB456.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVk/NDY1PyNzODcrNSNsYTg1ND81NCN2bGJrZHFwd2A4PGE3ZDEzPGc3NjQ9YDQ0MjUyN2ExYTI3YWM1NDMzPDI2ZGMyNDQ3NyNxODQzNDU8PDYwMzAjdGxhODQ1TExGb1BWNTc2Mzw9KDQ1TExGb1BQNTc2Mzw9I3dmdXE4I2Y4MDQjbWFpODU=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB473.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB480.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PT4xPDhsa247ajw/PDFubjBrams/OWpuO209PjE4Pz0/PjhqbTprOS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB518.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01OmxpaT84PDo/P20wPW49MT1tbD0+OzFsajs6bmptPWpqazo/OT05PC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB523.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01P246ajBrbW45amxtPW09Oj09aWpqbj9rbT45aj47bWk6Pjg4Oj45PS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB528.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01am5rODA6PG1qMT5pMTpuPTwxaz4xPjA+ajg9amwwO24waj1uam06PS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB529.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB531 Briese Revenue 2/4/2021 Adopt the Nebraska Child Care 
Contribution Tax Credit Act

LB538 Walz Education 2/16/2021 Adopt the Community Schools Act and 
change the distribution of income from 
solar and wind agreements on school 
lands

Monitor Monitor

LB545 Wayne General Affairs 2/1/2021 Adopt the Games of Skill Act, provide for 
excise taxes, and use proceeds to reduce 
school district property tax levies

LB550 Wayne Education 2/23/2021 Change enrollment option limits and 
provisions for part-time enrollment in 
schools

Oppose Oppose

LB558 Vargas Education 2/8/2021 Adopt the Alternative Certification for 
Quality Teachers Act

Monitor Monitor Monitor

LB568 Pansing Brooks Judiciary 2/5/2021 Placed on General File with 
AM264
Judiciary priority bill

Change provisions relating to truancy, 
juvenile courts, the Community-based 
Juvenile Services Aid Program, the 
Commission Grant Program, and 
compulsory education

Monitor Monitor

LB607 Hilgers Education 2/2/2021 Correct references to a federally defined 
term relating to education

Monitor Monitor

LB622 Friesen Revenue 2/17/2021 Limit the growth of real property 
valuations and provide for adjustments to 
assessed values

Oppose Monitor

LB623 Vargas Education 2/8/2021 Adopt the Remote Instruction Act Oppose Oppose Monitor
LB625 Vargas Revenue 2/25/2021 Indefinitely postponed Impose a surtax on certain taxable 

income and use the tax proceeds for 
early childhood education

LB630 Bostar Education 3/1/2021 Bostar priority bill, Placed on 
General File with AM376

Provide for a study of the efficacy of 
commercial air filters in classrooms

Monitor Monitor

LB639 Day Education 3/1/2021 Day priority bill,  Placed on 
General File with AM541

Adopt the Seizure Safe Schools Act Monitor Monitor

LB640 Day Education 3/1/2021 Change provisions related to early 
childhood education in the Tax Equity 
and Educational Opportunities Support 
Act

Support Support Monitor

LB641 Day Education 2/1/2021 Change provisions regarding school 
district salaries during an epidemic

Support Support

LB642 Day Education 2/9/2021 Provide for reimbursements to school 
districts and educational service units for 
mental health expenditures

Monitor Monitor

LB644 Hansen, B. Revenue 2/10/2021 Hansen, B. priority bill Adopt the Property Tax Request Act Oppose Oppose Oppose
LB651 Wayne Education 2/23/2021 Provide a termination date for the 

enrollment option program
Oppose Monitor Oppose

86

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01aTltbTg7PW1sO2s8bDs4a2ttPTAwPjpuaj0xMGs8bTg6Pm4/OD1ubC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB531.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01ODgxPT4wPGw7MTBraWw+PTltbDk+bW04PWs+OzBtPzk6bj4xaTFuOi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB538.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01MTFpbjkxMT44PD4wOmw+Oz1rbDkwbjlqO245MT45P2puMGlsOTo+Pi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB545.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PDg8bG4wMWw8aT9rbT06aWw4ajw8bTBpPG0/aj1tO2s+MW5rPDBqOC58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB550.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01OT1sPTw+aT8/PTBraj1uOT9saT8+OGluOT4wajhtMGwxbTBubj0xbi58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB558.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVYyOTs4Mi5+NTomOC5hbDU4OTI4OS57YW9maXx9em01PmtuP2tqPzE6PTlpMW0wPWltPzs8aTtsOjgxbW1tMT08aW05MD06aS58NTk+OTk5Pz4/MD4ueWFsNTk4Q0Q+WUFnODk8ODg9JTk4Q0Q+WUF5ODk8ODg9LnpreHw1Lms1PTkuYGxkNTg=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB568.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDAyZzUyYD1hYjViNT02YT0zZTVgMjc8Njc8ZzxiNzA3YDAwZWcxNSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB607.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5ZzIzNGVgZmEzNTNiNDBmN2czYWJnNWAyM2Y3ZTQ8NzJnNmI3ZTA0YSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB622.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDA3MmUyMzM1ZjNhZTM8MD1gZ2JnZTc2YjYwMjw3YDQ8PGI0MTE3NSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB623.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YD1nPT09YTRmMzFnYTFmM2c1ZmA3NGI0ZmFlNzA3YWEzNDQ1Zz0zNyJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB625.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5Zz1gPWZhNjFmZmI1ND1mPDVlYGI0ZTU0ZmcxNTUyMDdlMTZhNmAzYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB630.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5ZmJhPDYxPDI0MTIxM2I2ZmdgZzBgNTw2YGBnMmJnPTc0ZTNnZjM2PSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB639.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PDRgZTwwMjxgNTJmMGE9NmZmYmBhNjZmMGc1NWc8NTRhNTRlYjE0NiJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB640.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YjVhM2IzMzJnYDJmPWE1YDdgZTNlMj08PTU2Z2VgNDw9MTNiNjAzYCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB641.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NzAxNzE9ZjQ2ZjJhMmI8NmI2MmJlYWIyZ2E0YTUxZjEzPTBhMWExYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB642.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PTRnNDxnYTE8YGdgNWAwMDMxYmVhM2VlYTY8ZzFhNmc1NmIwMDY8PCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB644.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PGIwMTU3ZWc2YTM9NDQ3YjZgZzU8MzQyMjwyNT02NjNgMTU0PDA8NyJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB651.pdf


Bill Senator Commitee Hearing Action Description MPS 
Stance

GNSA 
Stance

NASB 
Stance

NCSA 
Stance

LB654 Wayne Banking, 
Commerce and 
Insurance

2/23/2021 Adopt the Public Entities Investment 
Trust Act

LB673 Murman Education 2/23/2021

Indefinitely postponed

Adopt the Education Behavioral 
Awareness and Support Act and change 
the determination and certification of 
state aid to schools

Monitor

LB675 Linehan Education 2/1/2021 Adopt the Education Lobbyist Pay 
Transparency Act

Monitor Monitor

LB681 Linehan Revenue 3/4/2021

Indefinitely postponed

Include elementary and secondary 
schools in the Nebraska educational 
savings plan trust and change tax 
benefits

Monitor

LB684 Clements Business and 
Labor

2/8/2021 Allow public school employees to join or 
terminate membership in a labor 
organization as prescribed

Monitor

LR13CA Brewer Education 2/8/2021 Constitutional amendment to limit the 
percentage of funding for schools that 
comes from property taxes

 

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LR21CA Briese Education 3/1/2021 Constitutional amendment to require the 
State of Nebraska to pay all classroom 
expenses related to the operation of 
public elementary and secondary schools

Oppose Oppose Oppose

LR22CA Linehan Revenue 1/27/2021 Constitutional amendment to limit the 
total amount of property tax revenue that 
may be raised by political subdivisions

Oppose Oppose Oppose

87

https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5M2FnZWBiYjwyPGViMjBnYWc2PGAyNTxmYTM2YjE3MWU0NzE3Zz01ZiJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB654.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NDY0YjQzYmc1Z2BgNDVnPTw9YTYwNzBmNDZiZj01ZzNhZTEyYDZnYSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB673.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5NGZgMjRnNDJhZWIxMjI3MGU8YDdmZTU3PD02Z2diN2E1PGBgPWA8YCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB675.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5YjNmMjU3NWY9Mz0xZ2A2YGJhNWZiMWFiNjMxYDIxMmc8ZzNgMj1iMSJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB681.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVo+NTc0PiJyOTYqNCJtYDk0NT40NSJ3bWNqZXBxdmE5PTw3NGI1MDVgM2I8ZjM9YjQzNDBmMjM2NWEyYGEwYWJhMWJgM2ExMCJwOTUyNTU2MjYwMz0idW1gOTU0SE93YFA3NDQxMD0xKTU0SE93YFAxNDQxMD0xInZndHA5Imc5MTUibGBoOTQ=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLB684.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JV07MDIxOyd3PDMvMSdoZTwxMDsxMCdyaGZvYHV0c2Q8Y2Q4ODdkNjgwM2A1NzQ1NDFiZTc5YDI4NGc1ZzkwZGAzYzViNjg1ZSd1PDA3MDEyODc5MjQncGhlPDAxQ0pTRzRbMTMyNDczLDAxQ0pTRzRjMTMyNDczJ3NicXU8J2I8NDAnaWVtPDE=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR13Ca.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVMxOjg7MS19NjklOy1ibzY7OjE7Oi14Ymxlan9+eW42MjhvbW85OTNuPjo+PzttOmg4O2hubjhpOj48bW08PD1pOj4yOGptPy1/Njo9Ojs9Pjw5PjotemJvNjo7TkBnXWRhOzs5OT09Jjo7TkBnXWRnOzs5OT09LXloe382LWg2PjotY29nNjs=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR21CA.pdf
https://fortimail.mpsomaha.org/fmlurlsvc/?fewReq=:B:JVI2PT88Nip6MT4iPCplaDE8PTY8PSp/ZWtibXh5fmkxOjU9PGlvaGk9bz84NDo+aG4/PTs+Om5tajo9aGo1ND09O2hpPG4+bip4MT06PT0/Pjs9NToqfWVoMT08QUl+S0BdPD49PT07IT08QUl+S0BfPD49PT07Kn5vfHgxKm8xOT0qZGhgMTw=&url=https%3a%2f%2fnebraskalegislature.gov%2fFloorDocs%2f107%2fPDF%2fIntro%2fLR22CA.pdf

	6750 1 Public Hearing Script 2021.docx (2).pdf
	StudentfeefundreceiptsApr21 (1).pdf
	2021
	Summary2021





